
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

February 24, 2015 
7:00 P.M. 

AGENDA 

City of 

“Where Dreams Can Soar” 

The City of Bonney Lake’s Mission is to protect 
the community’s livable identity and scenic 

beauty through responsible growth planning 
and by providing accountable, accessible and 

efficient local government services. 
www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us 

Location: Bonney Lake Justice & Municipal Center, 9002 Main Street East, Bonney Lake, Washington. 

I. CALL TO ORDER – Mayor Neil Johnson, Jr. 

A. Flag Salute 

B. Roll Call: Mayor Neil Johnson, Jr., Deputy Mayor Dan Swatman, Councilmember Mark 
Hamilton, Councilmember Donn Lewis, Councilmember Randy McKibbin, Councilmember 
Katrina Minton-Davis, Councilmember James Rackley, and Councilmember Tom Watson. 

C. Announcements, Appointments and Presentations: 

1. Announcements: None.

2. Appointments: None.

3. Presentations: None.

D. Agenda Modifications 

II. PUBLIC HEARINGS, CITIZEN COMMENTS & CORRESPONDENCE:

A. Public Hearings: None. 

B. Citizen Comments: Citizens are encouraged to attend and participate at all Council Meetings. 
You may address the Mayor and City Council on matters of City business, or over which the 
City has authority, for up to 5 minutes. Sign-up is not required. When recognized by the Mayor, 
please state your name and address for the official record. Designated representatives 
recognized by the chair who are speaking on behalf of a group may have a total of 10 minutes 
to speak. Each citizen is allowed to speak only once during Citizen Comments.  

C. Correspondence 

III. COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS:

A. Finance Committee 

B. Community Development Committee 

C. Economic Development Committee 

D. Public Safety Committee 

E. Other Reports 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA:
The items listed below may be acted upon by a single motion and second of the City Council. By
simple request to the Chair, any Councilmember may remove items from the Consent Agenda for
separate consideration after the adoption of the remainder of the Consent Agenda items.

A. Approval of Minutes: February 3, 2015 Council Workshop, February 6, 2015 Special 
Council Meeting, and February 10, 2015 Council Meeting. 

B. Approval of Accounts Payable and Utility Refund Checks/Vouchers: Accounts 
Payable checks/vouchers #70508-70526 (including wire transfer #’s 20150201, 20150202, 
20150203, and 20150204) in the amount of $118,851.87.  
Accounts Payable checks/vouchers #70527-70586 (including wire transfer # 2015021101) 
in the amount of $278,690.95.  

Page 1 of 2 
Agenda Packet p. 1 of 96

p. 3

Agenda Packet p. 1 of 96

http://www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us/


City Council Agenda February 24, 2015 

C. Approval of Payroll: Payroll for February 1st – 15th, 2015 for checks #32255-32271 
including Direct Deposits and Electronic Transfers is $ 448,972.49. 

D. AB15-04 – Ordinance D15-04 – An Ordinance Of The City Council Of The City Of 
Bonney Lake, Pierce County, Washington, Amending Portions Of Chapter 10.16 And 
Section 15.08.040 Of The Bonney Lake Municipal Code Related To The Regulation Of 
Recreational Vehicles. 

E. AB15-16 – Ordinance D15-16 – An Ordinance Of The City Council Of The City Of 
Bonney Lake, Pierce County, Washington, Amending Section 18.39.070 Of The Bonney 
Lake Municipal Code Related To Building Design Standards In Midtown. 

F. AB15-19 – Ordinance D15-19 – An Ordinance Of The City Council Of The City Of 
Bonney Lake, Pierce County, Washington, Amending Sections 13.12.010 And 13.12.320 
Of The Bonney Lake Municipal Code And The Corresponding Portions Of Ordinance 
Nos. 1266 And 1333 Relating To Fat, Oil, And Grease Deposits. 

G. AB15-23 – Resolution 2435 – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of 
Bonney Lake, Pierce County, Washington, Authorizing The Mayor To Sign An 
Agreement With Bonney Lake Community Resources For Operation Of The Bonney 
Lake Community Garden. 

H. AB15-24 – Resolution 2436 - A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of Bonney 
Lake, Pierce County, Washington, Awarding A Professional Services Agreement To GG 
Systems, Inc. For The 2015 Cla-Valve Rebuilds. 

V. FINANCE COMMITTEE ISSUES: 

A. AB15-26 – Ordinance D15-26 – An Ordinance Of The City Council Of The City Of 
Bonney Lake, Pierce County, Washington, Amending Chapter 19.08 Of The Bonney 
Lake Municipal Code And Ordinance No. 1478 Relating To School Impact Fees.  

B. AB15-30 – Resolution 2440 – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City of Bonney 
Lake, Pierce County, Washington, Authorizing The Mayor To Sign A Lease Termination 
For the Former City Hall Annex Building. 

VI. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE ISSUES: None.

VII. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE ISSUES: None.

VIII. PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE ISSUES:  None.

IX. FULL COUNCIL ISSUES: None.

X. EXECUTIVE SESSION:  
Pursuant to RCW 42.30.110, the City Council may hold an executive session. The topic(s) and 
the session duration will be announced prior to the executive session.  

XI. ADJOURNMENT

For citizens with disabilities requesting translators or adaptive equipment for communication 
purposes, the City requests notification as soon as possible of the type of service or equipment needed. 

THE COUNCIL MAY ADD AND TAKE ACTION ON OTHER ITEMS NOT LISTED ON THIS AGENDA 

Page 2 of 2 
Agenda Packet p. 2 of 96Agenda Packet p. 2 of 96

p. 13

p. 25

p. 35

p. 53

p. 61

p. 75

p. 93

Agenda Packet p. 2 of 96Agenda Packet p. 2 of 96



Page 1 of 3 
 

 
Location: Bonney Lake Justice & Municipal Center, 9002 Main Street East, Bonney Lake, Washington. 

I. Call to Order –Mayor Neil Johnson, Jr. called the meeting to order at 5:31 p.m. 

II. Roll Call:  Administrative Services Director/City Clerk Harwood Edvalson called the roll. In 
addition to Mayor Johnson, elected officials attending were Deputy Mayor Dan Swatman, 
Councilmember Mark Hamilton, Councilmember Randy McKibbin, Councilmember Donn 
Lewis, Councilmember James Rackley, and Councilmember Tom Watson.  Councilmember 
Katrina Minton-Davis was absent. 

Deputy Mayor Swatman moved to excuse Councilmember Minton-Davis’ absence.  
Councilmember Watson seconded the motion. 

Motion to excuse Councilmember 
Minton-Davis’ absence approved 6 – 0. 

Staff members in attendance were City Administrator Don Morrison, Public Works Director Dan 
Grigsby, Police Chief Dana Powers, City Attorney Kathleen Haggard, Senior Planner Jason 
Sullivan, Administrative Services Director/City Clerk Harwood Edvalson, and Administrative 
Specialist II Renee Cameron.  

III. Agenda Items:  

A. Proclamation:  Career and Technical Education Month. 

 Mayor Johnson read the Career and Technical Education Month Proclamation.  Debbie 
Beckwith, Business and Marketing and DECA Instructor with the Bonney Lake High School 
introduced herself and Tabitha Reynolds, who is a junior at Bonney Lake High School and 
the DECA student President, who attended to represent all of the career and technical student 
organizations at Bonney Lake High School.  Ms. Beckwith stated that the Bonney Lake 
DECA program is promoting an advocacy campaign during the month of February for 
National Career and Technical Education Month.  The campaign was established to provide 
businesses information to get them involved in any way possible to assist and help with the 
Business and Marketing and DECA programs.  No action was taken, as for presentation 
purposes only. 
 

B. Council Open Discussion:  

 Bonney Lake High School Culinary Arts Dinner Fundraiser.  Councilmember Lewis spoke 
regarding the Bonney Lake Dinner annual Culinary Arts Fundraiser to be held on Friday, 
February 6th at the Bonney Lake High School from 6:30-8:00 p.m.  He said tickets are still 
available and it will be a three course meal overseen by Seattle’s Metropolitan Grill Chef Eric 
Hellner.  Proceeds will help fund the costs for the Culinary Arts students for both the state 
and national competitions. 

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP 
 

February 3, 2015 
5:30 P.M. 

 

MINUTES 

City of 

 
“Where Dreams Can Soar” 

The City of Bonney Lake’s Mission is to protect 
the community’s livable identity and scenic 

beauty through responsible growth planning 
and by providing accountable, accessible and 

efficient local government services. 
 

www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us 

Agenda Packet p. 3 of 96Agenda Packet p. 3 of 96



City Council Workshop Minutes  February 3, 2015 

Page 2 of 3 

White River Families First Coalition.  Councilmember Lewis said he attended the January 
26th meeting at the Buckley Fire Station and there was a presentation from Central 
Communities Services, which is a food co-op that is available throughout the plateau.  He 
provided a report of the number of families the Coalition serves.  He said there was also a 
brief regarding the funding the service for the Beyond the Borders Connection transportation 
and encouraged residents to use it so it can be continued past July 2015. 

Promoting City Businesses 24/7.  Councilmember Watson said on January 17th he attended 
the Auburn Open Forum about their redevelopment of their downtown section.  He said a 
consultant from Oregon evaluated their downtown businesses and how they presented 
themselves in downtown Auburn, and how they can promote their businesses 24 hours a day.  
He said he will be bringing some of the ideas discussed at the forum to the Economic 
Development Committee, as well the Chamber of Commerce for consideration for promoting 
local businesses. 

Puget Sound Regional Council Meeting.  Councilmember Hamilton reminded everyone that 
the Puget Sound Regional Council General Assembly will be held on February 19th from 6:00 
p.m. – 9:00 p.m., and encouraged the Council to attend and to RSVP by the end of the week. 

Public Defender Contract.  City Administrator Morrison said he met with the Public Safety 
Committee Chair and the Chief Financial Officer regarding the public defender contract bid.  
He said the bids came in higher than expected, however, they are all experienced professional 
defense attorneys that the Municipal Court has worked with. He said the City will have to 
allocate additional funds of approximately $35,000 from the budget to cover the contract, 
regardless of the winning bid.  Council had questions about amending the budget or deferring 
the costs until the end of the year.  Councilmember Hamilton questioned whether neighboring 
cities could share in a public defender contract.  Councilmember Rackley asked about making 
amendments to the awarded contract in case of unsatisfactory service.  Council consensus 
was to use the fund balance to cover the proposed contract. 

Sumner Waste Water Treatment Facility Tour.  Administrative Services Director/City Clerk 
Edvalson inquired as to how many Councilmembers planned to attend the Sumner Waste 
Water Treatment Facility Tour on Friday, February 6th, to give direction to the Clerk’s Office 
whether a Special Council Meeting would need to be noticed.  It was determined that there 
would be a quorum of councilmembers in attendance, so the Clerk’s office would prepare the 
proper notice for posting. 

No action was taken as these items were for discussion purposes only. 
 

C. Review of Draft Minutes: January 20, 2015 Joint City Council - Planning Commission 
Meeting/Council Workshop and January 27, 2015 Council Meeting.  

 Minor corrections were made to the minutes and they were forwarded to the February 10, 
2015 Council Meeting for action. 
 

D. Discussion: AB15-01 – Ordinance D15-01 – Development Code Administration (Previously 
AB14-60)   

 Senior Planner Jason Sullivan summarized the agenda bill and the intention of proposed 
ordinance D15-05 and said the main issues were in regards to SEPA rules to further 
streamline the SEPA process, inconsistencies with process procedures relating to SEPA 

Agenda Packet p. 4 of 96Agenda Packet p. 4 of 96Agenda Packet p. 4 of 96Agenda Packet p. 4 of 96



City Council Workshop Minutes  February 3, 2015 

Page 3 of 3 

review, and improving readability of the code.  He then summarized the changes to the 
revisions to the code.  Council discussed the change back to 300’ from the 600’ radius notice 
area of the property.  Senior Planner Sullivan stated a new Section F was added to provide the 
Community Development Director the authority to require more than the minimum 300’ 
notice, if it is deemed necessary.  This item was forwarded to the February 10, 2015 City 
Council Meeting Consent Agenda for action. 
 

E. Discussion:  AB15-07 – Ordinance D15-07 – Ordinance Related to Parking at the Justice & 
Municipal Center and Library. 
 

City Administrator Morrison summarized the agenda bill regarding the parking lot between 
the Justice & Municipal Center and the Bonney Lake Library and the concern of neighboring 
properties utilizing the parking lot for vehicle storage.  He advised that the Bonney Lake 
Municipal Code does not authorize removal of these vehicles, and it causes parking issues 
during City and library business hours for patrons as the parking lot is intended for use by 
Justice & Municipal Center visitors, staff, and library patrons.  He stated if the proposed 
ordinance is approved that appropriate signage would be placed at both entrances to the 
parking lot regarding abandoned vehicles, and tagging of vehicles in violation.  He said 
towing would be enforced if the vehicle is not removed within the required time.  This item 
was forwarded to the February 10, 2015 City Council Meeting Consent Agenda for action.  
Councilmember Watson agreed to sponsor the ordinance.  Immediately following 
adjournment, City Attorney Haggard advised staff that changes will be required to provide 
the City authority to tow improperly parked vehicles. 
 
 

IV. EXECUTIVE SESSION:  None. 
 
 

V. ADJOURNMENT: 

Councilmember Watson moved to adjourn at 6:14 p.m.  Councilmember Lewis seconded 
the motion.  

Motion to adjourn approved 6 - 0. 

 
 

  

Harwood Edvalson, MMC 
City Clerk 

 Neil Johnson, Jr. 
Mayor 

 
Items presented to Council for the February 3, 2015 Workshop:   
 Councilmember Donn Lewis– Bonney Lake High School Culinary Arts Dinner Fundraising Flyer. 

 
Note: Unless otherwise indicated, all documents submitted at City Council meetings and workshops are on 

file with the City Clerk. For detailed information on agenda items, please view the corresponding 
Agenda Packets, which are posted on the city website and on file with the City Clerk. 

Agenda Packet p. 5 of 96Agenda Packet p. 5 of 96



Agenda Packet p. 6 of 96Agenda Packet p. 6 of 96Agenda Packet p. 6 of 96Agenda Packet p. 6 of 96



Page 1 of 1 

 
Location: Sumner Waste Water Treatment Facility, located at 13114 63rd Street E, Sumner, WA  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER – Those taking the tour were assembled at 12:45 p.m., and the tour 

began.  
 

II. IN ATTENDANCE:  
Councilmembers in attendance were Deputy Mayor Swatman, Councilmember 
McKibbin, Councilmember James Rackley, and Councilmember Tom Watson. 

Staff members in attendance were Public Works Director Dan Grigsby, Public Works 
Utility Engineer Doug Budzynski, Community Development Director John Vodopich, 
and Permit Coordinator Jen Francis. 
 
Others in attendance were Sumner Waste Water Treatment Facility Superintendent Greg 
Kongslie and Chief Operator Anthony Vendetti. 
 
 

III. AGENDA ITEMS:  

A. Sumner Waste Water Treatment Facility Construction Tour: 

Greg Kongslie described the plant operation, growth over the years, and capacity 
when the current $12 million dollar expansion project is completed next year. He 
led a tour through the plant and answered questions from the Councilmembers. 
 

B. Adjournment: 

At 2:30 p.m., the special meeting and tour concluded and those in attendance left 
the property. 

 
   

Harwood T. Edvalson, MMC 
City Clerk 

 Dan Swatman 
Deputy Mayor 

 

CITY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL MEETING 

 

February 6, 2015 
1:00 p.m. 

 

MINUTES 

City of 

 
“Where Dreams Can Soar” 

The City of Bonney Lake’s Mission is to 
protect the community’s livable identity 
and scenic beauty through responsible 

growth planning and by providing 
accountable, accessible and efficient 

local government services. 
 

www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us 

Agenda Packet p. 7 of 96Agenda Packet p. 7 of 96



Agenda Packet p. 8 of 96Agenda Packet p. 8 of 96Agenda Packet p. 8 of 96Agenda Packet p. 8 of 96



Page 1 of 4 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

February 10, 2015 
7:00 P.M. 

 

MINUTES 

City of 

 
“Where Dreams Can Soar” 

The City of Bonney Lake’s Mission is to 
protect the community’s livable identity 
and scenic beauty through responsible 

growth planning and by providing 
accountable, accessible and efficient local 

government services. 
 

www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us 

 
Location: Bonney Lake Justice & Municipal Center, 9002 Main Street East, Bonney Lake, Washington. 

I. CALL TO ORDER – Deputy Mayor Dan Swatman called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

A. Flag Salute: Deputy Mayor Swatman led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

B. Roll Call: Administrative Services Director/City Clerk Harwood Edvalson called the roll. 
Elected officials attending were Deputy Mayor Dan Swatman, Councilmember Mark 
Hamilton, Councilmember Donn Lewis, Councilmember Randy McKibbin, 
Councilmember Katrina Minton-Davis, Councilmember James Rackley, and 
Councilmember Tom Watson. Mayor Neil Johnson, Jr. was absent.  
 
Staff members in attendance were City Administrator Don Morrison, Public Works 
Director Dan Grigsby, Community Development Director John Vodopich, Chief 
Financial Officer Cherie Gibson, Police Chief Dana Powers, Administrative Services 
Director/City Clerk Harwood Edvalson, City Attorney Kathleen Haggard, Records & 
Information Specialist Susan Haigh, Assistant Public Works Director Charlie Simpson, 
and Administrative Assistant Christy McQuillen . 

C. Announcements, Appointments and Presentations:  

1. Announcements: None. 

2. Appointments: None. 

3. Presentations:  

a. Presentation: 2014 Police Department Employee Awards. 

Police Chief Powers presented 2014 Police Department service pins and awards 
to: Kris Yanez (5 years), Marcus Koehn (10 years), Barb Wigton (30 years), 
Daron Wolschleger (Outstanding Service), Eric Alfano (DUI enforcement 
award), Jaime Amsbaugh (Commitment to Community Support), Buddy Mahlum 
(Lifesaving Award), and Ryan Harberts (Lifesaving Award).  

b. Presentation: Adopt A Street Program Update & Annual Volunteer Awards. 

Public Works Administrative Specialist Christy McQuillen presented a summary 
of the Adopt A Street program activities in 2014, group photos, and presented the 
Volunteer of the Year Awards to Coletta Nilssen & her dog, Cooper. She thanked 
all the Adopt A Street groups, several of whom were in attendance. 
Councilmembers thanked the volunteers and Ms. McQuillen for their work. 

D. Agenda Modifications: None. 

 
 

Agenda Packet p. 9 of 96Agenda Packet p. 9 of 96



City Council Meeting Minutes  February 10, 2015 

Page 2 of 4 

II. PUBLIC HEARINGS, CITIZEN COMMENTS & CORRESPONDENCE:  

A. Public Hearings: None. 

B. Citizen Comments: 

Jaime Trejo, 10219 188th Ave E, Bonney Lake, spoke about an ongoing issue with illegal 
dumping on his property. He said he has had difficulty getting assistance from DM 
Disposal and the City’s Code Enforcement staff. He would like to install a fence, but City 
staff have told him there are issues due to a water line easement on his property. He asked 
the City to enforce the code requiring residents to subscribe to garbage service.  

C. Correspondence: None. 
 

III. COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS:  

A. Finance Committee/Committee of the Whole: Deputy Mayor Swatman said the 
committee met as the Committee of the Whole at 5:30 p.m. earlier in the evening and 
forwarded a school impact fee ordinance and an updated community garden agreement 
for action at a future meeting. At the conclusion of the meeting, the Committee met in a 
closed session to discuss collective bargaining agreements (labor negotiations).   

B. Community Development Committee: Councilmember Lewis said the Committee met on 
February 3, 2015 and forwarded motion AB15-22 and Resolution 2437 to the current 
agenda for Council action. 

C. Economic Development Committee: Councilmember Minton-Davis said the Committee 
met earlier in the afternoon and reviewed recurring topics and future work plan items.  

D. Public Safety Committee: Councilmember Watson said the committee met on February 2, 
2015 and discussed community outreach, boating safety grants, mailbox vandalism, and 
safety issues on SR 410. 

E. Other Reports: None. 
 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA: 

A. Approval of Minutes: January 20, 2015 Joint Planning Commission Meeting/Workshop 
and January 27, 2015 Meeting. 

B. Approval of Accounts Payable and Utility Refund Checks/Vouchers: Accounts 
Payable wire #2015012201 in the amount of $6,871.27 for p-card purchases.  
Accounts Payable checks/vouchers #70388-70433 (including wire transfer #’s 14703312, 
20150106, 20150107, and 20150108) in the amount of $430,005.69.  
Accounts Payable wire #20114122201 in the amount of $27,070.13 for p-card purchases.  
Accounts Payable checks/vouchers #70434 in the amount of $6,594.31.  
Accounts Payable checks/vouchers #70435-70507 (including wire transfer #’s 20150109, 
and 20150110) in the amount of $563,461.56.  
VOIDS: Check #70435 – Replaced with check #70436.  

C. Approval of Payroll: Payroll for January 16th-31st, 2015 for checks #32232-32254 
including Direct Deposits and Electronic Transfers is $ 681,199.89. 

Agenda Packet p. 10 of 96Agenda Packet p. 10 of 96Agenda Packet p. 10 of 96Agenda Packet p. 10 of 96



City Council Meeting Minutes  February 10, 2015 

Page 3 of 4 

D. AB15-01 – Ordinance 1505 [D15-01] – An Ordinance Of The City Council Of The City 
Of Bonney Lake, Pierce County, Washington, Repealing, Re-Adopting, And Amending 
Multiple Sections Of The Bonney Lake Municipal Code Relating To Development 
Review Procedures (Previously AB14-60). 

E. AB15-07 – Ordinance 1506 [D15-07] – An Ordinance Of The City Council Of The City 
Of Bonney Lake, Pierce County, Washington, Adding A New Section 10.36.025 To The 
Bonney Lake Municipal Code Relating To Restricted Parking. 

F. AB15-20 – Resolution 2434 – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of 
Bonney Lake, Pierce County, Washington, Authorizing A Renewed Agreement For 
Access To County Digital Orthophotography With Pierce County. 

G. AB15-22 – A Motion Of The City Council Of The City Of Bonney Lake, Pierce County, 
Washington, To Accept As Complete The Church Lake Overlay Project With Miles                   
Resources, LLC. 

Councilmember Watson moved to approve the Consent Agenda. Councilmember Lewis 
seconded the motion. 

Consent Agenda approved 7 – 0.  
 

V. FINANCE COMMITTEE ISSUES: None. 
 

VI. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE ISSUES:  

A. AB15-25 – Resolution 2437 – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of 
Bonney Lake, Pierce County, Washington, Authorizing A Second Amendment To The 
Agreement With The Transpo Group For The SR 410 – Veterans Memorial Drive 
Intersection Improvements To Update Plans For Advertisement.  

Councilmember Lewis moved to approve Resolution 2437. Councilmember Rackley 
seconded the motion. 

Councilmember Lewis said this item was placed under the CDC Issues heading as several 
Councilmembers had questions. Public Works Director Grigsby explained that the design 
agreement has needed to be amended due to changes required by WSDOT. He said the 
plans were originally approved in 2009, but there are new requirements and 
specifications which must be met. He said the project will include undergrounding of 
most utility lines (except high-capacity lines). He said the project is on track to advertise 
in March 2015 and begin construction in summer 2015. Work will be done overnight to 
reduce the impact of lane closures. Councilmembers asked about the funding sources, 
timelines, and other projects. Director Grigsby noted that WSDOT also plans to resurface 
SR 410 through Bonney Lake in summer 2015. Councilmember Rackley noted that the 
project will remove left-turn options for Myers Road; Director Grigsby added it will also 
prevent left turns out of the Wendy’s and Prime Fitness.  

Resolution 2437 approved 7 – 0.  
 

VII. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE ISSUES: None. 
 

VIII. PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE ISSUES: None. 

Agenda Packet p. 11 of 96Agenda Packet p. 11 of 96



City Council Meeting Minutes  February 10, 2015 

Page 4 of 4 

IX. FULL COUNCIL ISSUES: 

A. AB15-21 – Ordinance 1507 [D15-21] – An Ordinance Of The City Council Of The City 
Of Bonney Lake, Pierce County, Washington, Authorizing The Issuance And Sale Of 
Limited Tax General Obligation Refunding Bonds Of The City In An Aggregate 
Principal Amount Not To Exceed $9,000,000 To Refund Certain Outstanding Obligations 
Of The City; Delegating Authority To The City Administrator And Finance Director To 
Approve Final Terms Of The Bonds; Providing For The Disposition Of The Bond 
Proceeds; Appointing A Refunding Trustee And Execution Of An Escrow Agreement To 
Accomplish The Refunding; And Providing For The Annual Levy Of Taxes To Pay The 
Principal Of And Interest On The Bonds. 

Councilmember Watson moved to approve Ordinance 1507 [D15-21]. 
Councilmember Rackley seconded the motion. 

City Administrator Morrison said the City’s bond attorney was in attendance for any 
questions. Deputy Mayor Swatman said refinancing will save almost $400,000 of 
taxpayer funds and thanked staff and Councilmembers for seeing the process through.  

Ordinance 1507 approved 7 – 0.  

B. AB15-18 – Resolution 2433 – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of 
Bonney Lake, Pierce County, Washington, Authorizing An Employee Appreciation And 
Recognition Program.  

Councilmember Watson moved to approve Resolution 2433. Councilmember 
Rackley seconded the motion. 

Councilmember Hamilton spoke in favor of the proposed resolution. Deputy Mayor 
Swatman also spoke in support of the program and said it is important to recognize City 
staff for their hard work and the value they provide to citizens. 

Resolution 2433 approved 7 – 0.  
 

X. EXECUTIVE SESSION: None. 
 

XI. ADJOURNMENT: 

At 7:59 p.m., Councilmember Lewis moved to adjourn the Council Meeting. 
Councilmember Watson seconded the motion. 

Motion to adjourn approved 7 – 0.   
   

Harwood Edvalson, MMC 
City Clerk 

 Neil Johnson, Jr. 
Mayor 

 
Items presented to Council at the February 10, 2015 Meeting: None. 
 

Note:   Unless otherwise indicated, all documents submitted at City Council meetings and workshops are on file with the City 
Clerk. For detailed information on agenda items, please view the corresponding Agenda Packets, which are posted on 
the city website and on file with the City Clerk. 

Agenda Packet p. 12 of 96Agenda Packet p. 12 of 96Agenda Packet p. 12 of 96Agenda Packet p. 12 of 96



City of Bonney Lake, Washington 

City Council Agenda Bill (AB) 
 

Department/Staff Contact: 
Community Development/ 

Jason Sullivan – Senior Planner 

Meeting/Workshop Date: 

February 24, 2015 
Agenda Bill Number: 

AB15-04 

Agenda Item Type: 

Ordinance 
Ordinance/Resolution Number: 

D15-04 
Councilmember Sponsor: 

Donn Lewis 
 

Agenda Subject:  Amendment to the regulation of recreational vehicles 
 

Full Title/Motion:   An ordinance of the City Council of the City Of Bonney Lake, Pierce County, 

Washington, amending portions of Chapter 10.16 and Section 15.08.040 of the Bonney Lake Municipal 

Code related to the regulation of recreational vehicles. 
 

Administrative Recommendation:   
 

Background Summary:   The City of Bonney Lake’s current regulations in BLMC 10.16.020 and 

BLMC 15.08.040 prohibit a trailer or recreational vehicle from being occupied over 14 days without the 

approval of a temporary permit.  If an individual obtains a temporary permit, pursuant to Chapter 14.100 

BLMC, a trailer or recreational vehicle may be occupied for a maximum of two years.  The initial 

approval of the temporary permit is limited to one year, but may be extended for the second year pursuant 

to BLMC 14.100.020.C.   

These regulations have the effect of directly preventing a trailer or recreational vehicle from being used as 

a primary residence within an existing manufactured/mobile home communities in violation of RCW 

35A.21.312(3), by limiting the trailer or recreational vehicle to being occupied for a period of one or two 

years anywhere in the City.   The proposed amendment would bring the City into compliance with state 

law. 

Addressing the prohibitions against using recreational vehicles as a primary resident in 

manufactured/mobile home communities was identified as a mandatory change in the City’s recent Land 

Use Liability audit completed by the Washington Cities Insurance Authority (WCIA).  Progress toward 

addressing this mandatory change will be monitored and failure to comply with the mandatory 

requirements may result in a financial penalty pursuant to the WCIA Membership Compact.    

Attachments: Ordinance D15-04, Land Use Audit Letter, Planning Recommendation Memo 
 

BUDGET INFORMATION 

Budget Amount 

 
Current Balance 

 
Required Expenditure 

 
Budget Balance 

 

Budget Explanation:  
 

COMMITTEE, BOARD & COMMISSION REVIEW 

Council Committee Review: Community Development 

Date:  February 17, 2015 

Approvals:  Yes No 

Chair/Councilmember Donn Lewis X  
Councilmember Randy McKibbin X  

Councilmember James Rackley X  

 Forward to:  Consent Agenda: � Yes    � No 

Commission/Board Review: Planning Commission – February 18, 2015 

Hearing Examiner Review:  

 
 

Agenda Packet p. 13 of 96Agenda Packet p. 13 of 96



COUNCIL ACTION 

Workshop Date(s):    Public Hearing Date(s):  

Meeting Date(s):   Tabled to Date:  
 

APPROVALS 

Director: 

John P. Vodopich, AICP 
Mayor: 

 

Date Reviewed  

by City Attorney:  
(if applicable): 

 

 

Agenda Packet p. 14 of 96Agenda Packet p. 14 of 96Agenda Packet p. 14 of 96Agenda Packet p. 14 of 96



ORDINANCE NO. D15-04 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BONNEY 

LAKE, PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON, AMENDING PORTIONS OF 

CHAPTER 10.16 AND SECTION 15.08.040 OF THE BONNEY LAKE 

MUNICIPAL CODE RELATED TO THE REGULATION OF 

RECREATIONAL VEHICLES. 

WHEREAS, RCW 35A.21.312(3) prohibits the City from adopting “… an ordinance that 

has the effect, directly or indirectly, of preventing the entry or requiring the removal of a 

recreational vehicle used as a primary residence in manufactured/mobile home communities;” and 

WHEREAS, BLMC 15.08.040 only allows recreational vehicles to be used as a temporary 

shelter subject to the approval of a temporary permit; and 

WHEREAS, bringing the City’s regulation of recreational vehicles into compliance with 

RCW 35A.21.312(3) was identified as a mandatory action in the City’s 2014 Land Use Audit 

conducted by the Washington Cities Insurance Association; and  

WHEREAS, the Community Development Director acting as the SEPA Responsible 

Official determined that the proposed amendment is categorically exempt from the SEPA 

pursuant to WAC197-11-800(19)(b); and 

WHEREAS,  pursuant to the Growth Management Act - Chapter 36.70A RCW this 

Ordinance was provided to the Department of Commerce for 60-day review and comment by the 

Department and other State agencies; and 

WHEREAS, expedited review was requested and granted by the Department of 

Commerce and the review period concluded on January 29, 2015; and 

WHEREAS, notice of the public hearing was given to the public in accordance with law 

and a public hearing was held by the Planning Commission on February 18, 2015; 

NOW THEREFORE, the City Council of Bonney Lake, Washington, do ordain as follows: 

Section 1. Section 10.16.010, “Definitions” of the Bonney Lake Municipal Code and the 

corresponding portions of Ordinance Nos. 1385 § 1 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

10.16.010 Definitions. 

As used in this chapter, the following words and phrases shall have the meanings ascribed to them 

in this section: 

A. “Boat” means any water vessel designed to carry persons and/or property upon water, 

propelled by engine, oars or sail. 

Agenda Packet p. 15 of 96Agenda Packet p. 15 of 96



B. “Manufactured/mobile home community" means any real property which is rented or held 

out for rent to others for the placement of two or more mobile homes, manufactured homes, 

or park models for the primary purpose of production of income, except where such real 

property is rented or held out for rent for seasonal recreational purpose only and is not 

intended for year-round occupancy. 

C. “Recreational vehicle” means a vehicular-type unit primarily designed for recreational 

camping or travel use that has its own motive power or is mounted on or towed by another 

vehicle. The units include travel trailers, fifth-wheel trailers, folding camping trailers, truck 

campers, and motor homes. 

D. “Trailer” means a unit without its own motive power, designed to carry property, designed 

to be towed by a motor vehicle, including semi-trailer. 

E. “Recreational vehicle park/and campground” means any tract of land in a public facilities 

district per Chapter 18.34 BLMC and divided into lots or spaces, under the ownership or 

management of one person, firm or corporation for the purpose of locating three or more 

recreational vehicles for nightly or short-term use. Said campground shall have an on-site 

caretaker.  

Section 2. Section 10.16.020, “Parking of recreational vehicles – Prohibited where and 

when” of the Bonney Lake Municipal Code and the corresponding portions of Ordinance Nos. 

1390 § 1 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

10.16.020 Parking of boats, recreational vehicles, and trailers – Prohibited where and 

when. 

A. It is unlawful to park or stand any trailer, recreational vehicle or boat, or use or occupy same 

while so parked or standing, on any tract of ground except as provided in this section: chapter; 

and  

A. Trailers or recreational vehicles may stand or be parked for an indefinite period in a 

manufactured/mobile home community provided that the following conditions are meet: 

1. The trailer or recreational vehicle is connected to sewer or a Pierce County Health 

Department approved septic system, water, and electricity; and 

2. The trailer or recreational vehicle contains at least one internal toilet and at least 

one internal shower; provided, that if this requirement is not met, a 

manufactured/mobile home community must provide toilets and showers in lieu of 

having the facilities within the trailer or recreational vehicle.  

B. No trailer, recreational vehicle or boat shall stand or be parked on any street, right-of-way, 

alley or public place in Bonney Lake for a period exceeding 24 hours, and shall not stand 

or be parked for any period of time between sunset and sunrise in any city park or upon 

Agenda Packet p. 16 of 96Agenda Packet p. 16 of 96Agenda Packet p. 16 of 96Agenda Packet p. 16 of 96



any other city-owned property, excluding a street or right-of-way, unless that area is posted 

granting permission to so use or as specified in Chapter 12.12 BLMC.; and  

C. It is provided, that a A trailer, recreational vehicle or boat may stand or be parked and used 

or occupied on the premises of any occupied dwelling with the permission of the lawful 

occupant thereof or in a recreational vehicle park/campground for a period not to exceed 

two weeks within a six month period; provided, that such use or occupancy does not create 

a public health hazard or nuisance.; and 

D. After a building permit for a single family home has been issued and the residence is in the 

process of being constructed, a trailer or recreational vehicle may stand or be parked for 

the temporary use by the owner of such property as a residence upon approval of a 

temporary permit subject to the requirements on BLMC 14.100.020 and the following 

requirements:  

1. The trailer or recreational vehicle remains mobile; and  

2. The minimum setback requirements for the zoning district in which the unit is to 

be located are met; and 

3. The unit is connected to sewer or a Pierce County Health Department approved 

septic system, water, and electricity. 

E. It is provided further, that unused Unused and unoccupied trailers, recreational vehicles, or 

boats may stand or be parked on private property if parked on a hard, drivable, impervious 

surface, which does not exceed the current maximum allowable impervious surface lot 

coverage limitations for the zone in which the property is located. If such trailer, 

recreational vehicle or boat stands or is parked along the side of or in the rear of a residence, 

it must be adequately screened from adjoining properties and from the view of the right-

of-way in accordance with Chapter 8.20 BLMC. 

F. The provisions of this chapter shall not apply to unoccupied trailers, recreational vehicles, 

or boats that stand or are parked in sales lots, or within public or private garages. 

Section 3. Section 15.08.040, “Travel trailers, campers, motor homes and temporary 

shelters – Temporary permit” of the Bonney Lake Municipal Code and the corresponding portions 

of Ordinance Nos. 1137§ 1 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

15.08.040 Travel trailers, campers, and motor homes and temporary shelters – 

Temporary permit. 

 

Travel trailers, campers, motor homes and other similarly temporary shelters are regulated 

under the City of Bonney Lake’s Recreational Vehicle Code – see Chapter 10.16 BLMC. 

may be occupied in excess of 14 days only with a temporary permit (Type 1 permit – see 

Chapter 14.30 BLMC). A temporary permit shall not be approved unless: 

Agenda Packet p. 17 of 96Agenda Packet p. 17 of 96



 

A. The minimum setback requirements for the zoning district in which the unit is to be 

located are met; and 

 

B. The unit is connected to sewer or a septic tank, as approved by the Pierce County health 

department, water and electricity. 

Section 4. Severability. If any one or more section, subsection, or sentence of this 

ordinance is held to be unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the 

remaining portion of this ordinance and the same shall remain in full force effect. 

 

 Section 5. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect five (5) days after its passage, 

approval and publication as required by law. 

 

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL this _______ day of ____________, 2015. 

 

 

       ____________________________ 

       Neil Johnson, Jr., Mayor 

 

AUTHENTICATED: 

 

____________________________ 

Harwood T. Edvalson, MMC, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

____________________________ 

Kathleen Haggard, City Attorney 

Agenda Packet p. 18 of 96Agenda Packet p. 18 of 96Agenda Packet p. 18 of 96Agenda Packet p. 18 of 96



 

 
November 10, 2014 

 

Woody Edvalson 

City of Bonney Lake 

PO BOX 7380 

Bonney Lake, WA 98391-0944 

 

RE: 2014 Annual Review & Audit 

 

Dear Woody:  

 

This letter is a follow-up to the visit I made last month to perform the 2014 Annual 

Review and Audit. Following the terms of the WCIA Membership COMPACT, I visited 

to conduct a review of your Land Use Liability practices as well as to provide you with 

other information as part of the Annual Review. I’d like to thank you, Jason, John, Ryan 

and Don for setting aside a portion of the day to meet with me. 

 

2013 AUDIT RESULTS  

 

I was happy to verify that the City had complied with the mandatory requirements 

generated from the 2013 Cyber Liability Audit. Therefore the City is considered to be in 

compliance with the terms of the WCIA COMPACT. 

 

2014 AUDIT RESULTS  

 

As you know, this year’s audit focused on Land Use. The Audit resulted in three 

mandatory requirements being generated, which will be monitored for compliance in 

2015. Please be aware that failure to comply with the mandatory requirements may result 

in a financial penalty. 

 

MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS 

 

Q1.20 Does your code and practices comply with the current legislative enactments 

governing manufactured housing/recreational vehicles? 

 

Agenda Packet p. 19 of 96Agenda Packet p. 19 of 96



Page 2 

City of Bonney Lake 

November 10, 2014 

 

 

Q1.23 Does your code and practices comply with the current legislative enactments 

governing daycares? 

 

Q1.24 Do your code and practices comply with the current legislative enactments 

governing wireless facilities? 

Both a municipality’s code provisions and its practices should be in conformity with the 

various grants of authority and limitations found in constitutional and statutory 

provisions as well as numerous court and growth management board decisions. It is 

crucial that all administrative land use decisions are backed by appropriate 

documentation that supports an analysis of the criteria identified in a municipality’s 

development code. 

 

In addition to the mandatory requirements, the following are recommendations: 

 

Q1.27 When a claim is filed, a lawsuit is initiated or a public record request is made, 

does the city have a process to identify and preserve all documents, including 

electronic documents, that may be relevant to the issues set forth in that claim or 

lawsuit? 

I have recommended that the city develop a written procedure addressing this issues. 

 

Q2.3a Is your city’s code of ethics consistent with the provisions of this statute? 

I have recommended that the city adopt a section in the municipal code addressing 

ethics. I will provide you with some sample language from other cities. 

 

AUTO PHYSICAL DAMAGE AND PROPERTY PROGRAMS 

 

I provided current copies of your auto and property schedules for review. Please let 

WCIA know if there are changes you wish to make, or the changes can be made “on line” 

at the WCIA Web Site 

 

COMPACT STATUS & TRAINING REQUIREMENTS 

 

To date you have complied with all portions of the COMPACT Requirements. 

Congratulations! 

 

Member Services Coordinator, Maria Orozco will be periodically sending out 

announcements regarding the various trainings that will be scheduled throughout the 

year. Please feel free to call her if you have any questions or wish to schedule additional 

training.  

Agenda Packet p. 20 of 96Agenda Packet p. 20 of 96Agenda Packet p. 20 of 96Agenda Packet p. 20 of 96



Page 3 

City of Bonney Lake 

November 10, 2014 

 

 

SUMMARY 

 

This completes the summary of my recent visit. It was great to see you again and I 

encourage you to contact me with any risk management concerns you may have. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Debbi Sellers 
 

Debbi Sellers, RPLU 

Senior Risk Management Representative 

Washington Cities Insurance Authority 

debbis@wciapool.org 

 

Agenda Packet p. 21 of 96Agenda Packet p. 21 of 96



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 

 

Agenda Packet p. 22 of 96Agenda Packet p. 22 of 96Agenda Packet p. 22 of 96Agenda Packet p. 22 of 96



 

� Page 1 

Memo 
Date : February 18, 2015 

To : Mayor and City Council 

From : Grant Sulham, Planning Commission Chair    

Re : Ordinance D15-04 

RCW 35A.21.312 was originally enacted by the Washington State Legislature in 2004 under Senate 

Bill 6593 to protect the consumers' rights to choose among a number of housing construction 

alternatives without restraint of trade or discrimination by local governments.  In enacting RCW 

35A.21.312, the legislature found that manufactured housing plays a vital role in meeting the housing 

needs of the nation and provides a significant resource for affordable homeownership and rental housing 

accessible to all Americans. 

Subsequently, in 2009 the Washington State Legislature passed Engrossed House Bill 1227 extending 

some of the protection to recreational vehicles within manufactured/mobile home communities.  The 

bill amended RCW 35A.21.312 by prohibiting cities from enacting local laws that would directly or 

indirectly prevent the use of recreational vehicle as a primary residence in manufactured/mobile home 

communities.  The amendments did allow cities to adopt local ordinances to: 

• Imposes fire, safety, or other regulations related to recreational vehicles. 

• Requires utility hookups in manufactured/mobile home communities to meet state or federal 

building code standards for manufactured/mobile home communities or recreational vehicle 

parks. 

• Require that a recreational vehicle must contain at least one internal toilet and at least one 

internal shower and if the requirement is not met, a manufactured/ mobile home community 

must provide toilets and showers. 

The City of Bonney Lake’s current regulations in BLMC 10.16.020 and BLMC 15.08.040 prohibit a 

trailer or recreational vehicle from being occupied over 14 days without the approval of a temporary 

permit.  If an individual obtains a temporary permit, pursuant to Chapter 14.100 BLMC, a trailer or 

Planning  

Commission 

 

Agenda Packet p. 23 of 96Agenda Packet p. 23 of 96



 

� Page 2 

recreational vehicle may be occupied for a maximum of two years.  The initial approval of the temporary 

permit is limited to one year, but may be extended for the second year pursuant to BLMC 14.100.020.C.  

These regulations have the effect of directly preventing a trailer or recreational vehicle from being used 

as a primary residence within an existing manufactured/mobile home communities in violation of RCW 

35A.21.312(3).    

The Planning Commission finds that the proposed amendment in Ordinance D15-04 will ensure 

consistency between the state law and the Bonney Lake Municipal Code.   

On February 18, 2015, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on Ordinance D15-04 which 

amendments the City’s RV regulations and voted 6-0-0 to recommend that the City Council approve 

Ordinance D15-04. 

 

  

Agenda Packet p. 24 of 96Agenda Packet p. 24 of 96Agenda Packet p. 24 of 96Agenda Packet p. 24 of 96



City of Bonney Lake, Washington 

City Council Agenda Bill (AB) 
 

Department/Staff Contact: 
Community Development/ 

Jason Sullivan – Senior Planner 

Meeting/Workshop Date: 

February 24, 2015 
Agenda Bill Number: 

AB15-16 

Agenda Item Type: 

Ordinance 
Ordinance/Resolution Number: 

D15-16 
Councilmember Sponsor: 

Donn Lewis 
 

Agenda Subject:  Midtown Core Design Standards Amendment 
 

Full Title/Motion:   An ordinance of the City Council of the City Of Bonney Lake, Pierce County, 

Washington, amending Section 18.39.070 of the Bonney Lake Municipal Code related to building design 

standards in Midtown. 
 

Administrative Recommendation:   
 

Background Summary:   The City currently prohibits the construction of parking lots between a 

building and the future 204th Avenue East that would be developed as part of the WSU project.  This 

roadway was identified in the Midtown Subarea Plan – Figure 11-2 as one of the future roadways needed 

to support development and would provide access to parking lots in lieu of direct access from SR-410.  

Staff has reviewed the ordinance that adopted the prohibition against parking lots adjacent to 204th 

Avenue East and it does not provide a reason for this requirement.  The requirement is a significant 

challenge to development of the commercial potion of the WSU project and is inconsistent with the intent 

of the Midtown Subarea Plan. 

Attachments: Ordinance D15-16 and Planning Recommendation Memo 
 

BUDGET INFORMATION 

Budget Amount 

 
Current Balance 

 
Required Expenditure 

 
Budget Balance 

 

Budget Explanation:  
 

COMMITTEE, BOARD & COMMISSION REVIEW 

Council Committee Review: Community Development 

Date:  February 17, 2015 

Approvals:  Yes No 

Chair/Councilmember Donn Lewis X  
Councilmember Randy McKibbin X  

Councilmember James Rackley X  

 Forward to:  Consent Agenda: � Yes    � No 

Commission/Board Review: Planning Commission – February 18, 2015 

Hearing Examiner Review:  

 

COUNCIL ACTION 

Workshop Date(s):    Public Hearing Date(s):  

Meeting Date(s):   Tabled to Date:  
 

APPROVALS 

Director: 

John P. Vodopich, AICP 
Mayor: 

 

Date Reviewed  

by City Attorney:  
(if applicable): 

 

 

Agenda Packet p. 25 of 96Agenda Packet p. 25 of 96



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 

 

Agenda Packet p. 26 of 96Agenda Packet p. 26 of 96Agenda Packet p. 26 of 96Agenda Packet p. 26 of 96



ORDINANCE NO. D15-16 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BONNEY 

LAKE, PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON, AMENDING SECTION 

18.39.070 OF THE BONNEY LAKE MUNICIPAL CODE RELATED TO 

BUILDING DESIGN STANDARDS IN MIDTOWN. 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted Ordinance 1410 to establish development standards 

to implement the Midtown Subarea Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the Midtown Subarea Plan identified the need for future roads to facilitate 

convenient access to, from, and between businesses; and  

WHEREAS, 204th Avenue East was identified in the Midtown Subarea Plan – Figure 11-

2 as one of the future roadways needed to support development; and 

WHEREAS, the primary purpose of 204th Avenue East is to provide access to parking lots  

in lieu of direct access from SR-410; and 

WHEREAS, the Community Development Director acting as the SEPA Responsible 

Official determined that the proposed amendment is categorically exempt from the SEPA 

pursuant to WAC197-11-800(19)(b); and 

WHEREAS,  pursuant to the Growth Management Act - Chapter 36.70A RCW this 

Ordinance was provided to the Department of Commerce for 60-day review and comment by the 

Department and other State agencies; and 

WHEREAS, expedited review was requested and granted by the Department of 

Commerce and the review period concluded on January 29, 2015; and 

WHEREAS, notice of the public hearing was given to the public in accordance with law 

and a public hearing was held by the Planning Commission on February 18, 2015; 

WHEREAS, the amendment to the is consistency with the comprehensive plan and the 

laws of the state of Washington as required by BLMC 14.140.090.B, and 

NOW THEREFORE, the City Council of Bonney Lake, Washington, do ordain as follows: 

Section 1. Section 18.39.070, “Building design” of the Bonney Lake Municipal Code and 

the corresponding portions of Ordinance Nos. 1410 § 1 (Attachment A) is hereby amended to read 

as follows: 

18.39.070 Building design. 

A. Any developments occupying two acres or more of land area shall provide a plaza or 

other exterior gathering space equivalent to at least one percent of the overall acreage 

Agenda Packet p. 27 of 96Agenda Packet p. 27 of 96



of the site. The plaza design must include gathering areas with benches or seating 

spaces, landscaping, and trash receptacles.  

B. Multistory commercial buildings and commercial buildings wider than 100 feet 

(measured along walls adjacent to streets and/or front entrances) shall include at least 

three of the following articulation features along all facades at articulation intervals of 

no wider than 60 feet: 

1. Providing building modulation of at least two feet in depth and four feet in 

width.  

2. Repeating distinctive window patterns at intervals narrower than the 

articulation interval.  

3. Providing a covered entry or separate weather protection feature for each 

articulation interval.  

4. Change of roofline.  

5. Changing materials and/or color with a change in building plane.  

6. Providing lighting fixtures, trellis, tree, or other landscape feature within each 

interval. 

7. Other methods that meet the intent of this chapter as approved by the director. 

8. The following is an illustration of building modulation: 

 

C. All residential buildings and residential portions of mixed-use buildings shall include 

at least three of the following modulation and/or articulation features at intervals of no 

wider than 30 feet along all facades facing a street, common open space, and common 

parking areas:  

Agenda Packet p. 28 of 96Agenda Packet p. 28 of 96Agenda Packet p. 28 of 96Agenda Packet p. 28 of 96



1. Repeating distinctive window patterns at intervals less than the required 

interval. 

2. Vertical building modulation. Minimum depth and width of modulation is 18 

inches and four feet (respectively) if tied to a change in color or building 

material and/or roofline modulation. Otherwise, minimum depth of modulation 

is 10 feet and minimum width for each modulation is 15 feet. Balconies may 

not be used to meet the modulation option unless they are recessed or projected 

from the facade and integrated with the building’s architecture as determined 

by the director. For example, “cave” balconies or other balconies that appear to 

be “tacked on” to the facade, as shown in the photographs below, will not 

qualify for this option. 

     

3. Horizontal modulation (upper level step-backs) a minimum of five feet. 

4. Articulation of the building’s top, middle, and bottom. This typically includes 

a distinctive ground floor or lower floor design, consistent articulation of 

middle floors, and a distinctive roofline. 

D. The maximum facade width, which is the apparent width of the structure facing the 

street including required modulation, is 120 feet. Buildings exceeding 120 feet in width 

along the street front shall be divided by a minimum 30-foot-wide modulation of the 

exterior wall, so that the maximum length of a particular facade is 120 feet. Such 

modulation must be at least 20 feet or deeper and extend through all floors. Other design 

features will be considered by the director that effectively break up the scale of the 

building and add visual interest. This could include a combination of a clear change in 

vertical articulation and a contrasting change in building materials and/or finishes. 

Agenda Packet p. 29 of 96Agenda Packet p. 29 of 96



 

E. Multiple-building commercial developments are encouraged to employ a variety of 

colors, building materials, and architectural treatments to reduce monotony.  

F. On parcels adjacent to 204th Avenue East, no parking shall be located between the 

building and the front property line. 

Section 2. Severability. If any one or more section, subsection, or sentence of this 

ordinance is held to be unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the 

remaining portion of this ordinance and the same shall remain in full force effect. 

 Section 3. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect five (5) days after its passage, 

approval and publication as required by law. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Packet p. 30 of 96Agenda Packet p. 30 of 96Agenda Packet p. 30 of 96Agenda Packet p. 30 of 96



PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL this _______ day of ____________, 2015. 

 

 

       ____________________________ 

       Neil Johnson, Jr., Mayor 

 

AUTHENTICATED: 

 

____________________________ 

Harwood T. Edvalson, MMC, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

____________________________ 

Kathleen Haggard, City Attorney 

Agenda Packet p. 31 of 96Agenda Packet p. 31 of 96



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 

 

Agenda Packet p. 32 of 96Agenda Packet p. 32 of 96Agenda Packet p. 32 of 96Agenda Packet p. 32 of 96



 

� Page 1 

Memo 
Date : February 18, 2015 

To : Mayor and City Council 

From : Grant Sulham, Planning Commission Chair    

Re : Ordinance D15-16 

The City currently prohibits the construction of parking lots between a building and the future 204th 

Avenue East that would be developed as part of the WSU project.  This roadway was identified in the 

Midtown Subarea Plan – Figure 11-2 as one of the future roadways needed to support development and 

would provide access to parking lots in lieu of direct access from SR-410.  

The ordinance that adopted the prohibition against parking lots adjacent to 204th Avenue East did not 

provide justification for this prohibition.  The requirement is a significant challenge to development of 

the commercial potion of the WSU project and is inconsistent with the intent of the Midtown Subarea 

Plan. 

The Planning Commission finds that the proposed amendment in Ordinance D15-16 will ensure 

consistency between the Bonney Lake Comprehensive Plan and the Midtown Design Standards.   

On February 18, 2015, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on Ordinance D15-16 which 

amendments 18.39.070 and voted 5-1-0 to recommend that the City Council approve Ordinance D15-

16. 

 

 

  

Planning  
Commission 

 

Agenda Packet p. 33 of 96Agenda Packet p. 33 of 96



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 

 

Agenda Packet p. 34 of 96Agenda Packet p. 34 of 96Agenda Packet p. 34 of 96Agenda Packet p. 34 of 96



City of Bonney Lake, Washington 
City Council Agenda Bill (AB) 

Department/Staff Contact: 
Executive / Don Morrison 

Meeting/Workshop Date: 
24 February 2015 

Agenda Bill Number: 
AB15-19 

Agenda Item Type: 
Ordinance 

Ordinance/Resolution Number: 
D15-19 

Councilmember Sponsor: 
Donn Lewis 

Agenda Subject:  Amendment to BLMC Section 13.12 Related to Fat, Oils and Grease (FOG) deposits 
into the Sewer System.  

Full Title/Motion:   An Ordinance  Of The City Council Of The City Of Bonney Lake, Pierce County, 
Washington, Amending Sections 13.12.010 And 13.12.320 Of The Bonney Lake Municipal Code And 
The Corresponding Portions Of Ordinance Nos. 1266 And 1333 Relating To Fat, Oil, And Grease 
Deposits. 

Administrative Recommendation:  Approve 

Background Summary:  With a few businesses, it has been difficult to obtain compliance with the FOG 
regulations.  The current code makes non-compliance a criminal misdemeanor offense. It is 
recommended that a progressive system of fines would be a better enforcement and compliance method 
than criminal charges.  It is recommended that Council update and refine the FOG ordinance to allow for 
more effective penalties for violations. Executive, public works, and legal staff have been working on this 
issue and code update for some time.   
Attachments:  Ordinance No. D15-19 

BUDGET INFORMATION 
Budget Amount Current Balance Required Expenditure Budget Balance 

Budget Explanation: 

COMMITTEE, BOARD & COMMISSION REVIEW 
Council Committee Review: Community Development 

Date: 17 February 2015 
Approvals: Yes No 

Chair/Councilmember Donn Lewis 

Councilmember Randy McKibbin 

Councilmember James Rackley  

Forward to: City Council  Consent 
Agenda:  Yes     No 

Commission/Board Review: 
Hearing Examiner Review: 

COUNCIL ACTION 
Workshop Date(s): Public Hearing Date(s): 
Meeting Date(s):  24 February 2014 Tabled to Date: 

APPROVALS 
Director: 
Dan Grigsby, P.E. 

Mayor: 
Neil Johnson Jr. 

Date Reviewed  
by City Attorney: 
(if applicable): 

18 February 2015 

N:\Everyone\_Agenda Review\2015\2-24-15\AB15-19\AB15-19 FOG Code Amendments - FINAL 2015-02-18.docx 
Version Oct. 2010 Agenda Packet p. 35 of 96Agenda Packet p. 35 of 96



This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Packet p. 36 of 96Agenda Packet p. 36 of 96



Page 1 of 16 

ORDINANCE NO. D15-19 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BONNEY LAKE, PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON, AMENDING 
SECTIONS 13.12.010 AND 13.12.320 OF THE BONNEY LAKE 
MUNICIPAL CODE AND THE CORRESPONDING PORTIONS OF 
ORDINANCE NOS. 1266 AND 1333 RELATING TO FAT, OIL, AND 
GREASE DEPOSITS. 

WHEREAS, to protect the sanitary sewer system from the harmful effects of fat, 
oil, and grease (FOG) deposits, the Bonney Lake Municipal Code regulates and limits 
said deposits from commercial establishments including restaurants; 

WHEREAS, the Bonney Lake City Council desires to update and refine the FOG 
ordinance to allow for more effective penalties for violations. 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BONNEY 
LAKE, WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Section 13.12.010 of the Bonney Lake Municipal Code and the 
corresponding portions of Ordinance No. 1333 are hereby amended to read as follows: 

13.12.010 Definitions. 

Unless the context specifically indicates otherwise, the meaning of terms and words used 
in this code shall be as follows: 

0. “Bed/bonus room” means any bedroom or other room such as a bonus room, den, or
office in a multifamily dwelling that, in the opinion of the building official, could 
reasonably be converted to a bedroom. 

1. “BOD” (biochemical oxygen demand) means the quantity of oxygen utilized in the
biochemical oxidation of organic matter under standard laboratory procedure as described 
in the most current edition of Standard Methods for the Examination of Water and Waste 
Water in five days at 20 degrees Celsius expressed in milligrams per liter. 

2. “Building drain” means that part of the lowest horizontal piping of a drainage system
which receives the discharge from sanitary waste floor drains and other drainage pipes 
inside the walls of the building and conveys it to the building sewer, beginning five feet 
(1.5 meters) outside the inner face of the building wall. 

Agenda Packet p. 37 of 96Agenda Packet p. 37 of 96



Page 2 of 16 
 

3. “Building sewer, connecting sewer or house lateral” means the private extension from 
the building drain to the public sewer or other place of disposal. 

4. “City” means the City of Bonney Lake, Washington. 

5. “Collection system” means the system of public sewers to be operated by the city 
designed for the collection of sanitary sewerage. 

6. “Commercial user” means any premises used for commercial or business purposes 
which is not a residential user and not an industry as defined in this chapter. A 
commercial user is one who introduces primarily domestic wastes and wastes from 
sanitary conveniences into the sewer system. 

7. “Council” means the council of the city of Bonney Lake, Washington. 

8. “County” means Pierce County, Washington. 

9. “Domestic waste” means any wastewater (sewage) emanating from a residence or from 
domestic activities performed outside the place of residence (in lieu of a home activity) 
by or for private citizens. The wastewater concentrations shall not exceed 250 mg/l 
BOD5 and 250 mg/l SS. 

10. “Duplex” means one structure containing two dwelling units. 

11. “Dwelling unit” means a single unit providing complete independent living facilities 
for one or more persons, including permanent provisions for living, sleeping, eating, 
cooking and sanitation. 

12. “Finance director” means the finance director of the city of Bonney Lake or his agent. 

13. “Garbage” means solid wastes from the domestic and commercial preparation, 
cooking and dispensing of food, and from the handling, storage and sale of produce. 

14. “Industrial user” means a nongovernmental user of the public treatment works 
identified in the Standards Industrial Classification Manual, 1972, Office of Management 
and Budget, as amended or supplemented. 

Agenda Packet p. 38 of 96Agenda Packet p. 38 of 96Agenda Packet p. 38 of 96Agenda Packet p. 38 of 96



Page 3 of 16 
 

15. “Industrial waste” means that portion of wastewater emanating from an industrial 
user which is not domestic waste or waste from sanitary conveniences. 

16. “Inspector” means the person assigned by the City to inspect building sewer 
installation between the building and the public sanitary sewer line within the street. 
Inspectors shall operate under the direction of the public works director. 

17. “Lateral” means a public sewer which receives flow from one or more side sewers 
and discharges into a trunk or interceptor. 

18. “Mayor” means the mayor of the City of Bonney Lake. 

19. “Multifamily” means a single structure containing three or more dwelling units. 

20. “Natural outlet” means any outlet into a watercourse, pond, ditch, lake or other body 
of surface or ground water. 

21. “Occupant” means any person or owner in physical possession of a structure to which 
sewer service is available. 

22. “Operation and maintenance” means all activities, goods and services which are 
necessary to maintain the proper capacity and performance of the sewage works for 
which such works were designed and constructed. The term “operation and maintenance” 
includes replacement as defined in this chapter. 

23. “Permit” means an application for a printed and serially numbered form issued in 
quadruplicate by the city prior to construction of any side sewer. 

24. “Person” means any individual, firm, company, association, society, corporation or 
group. 

25. “pH” means the logarithm of the reciprocal of the weight of hydrogen ions. 

26. “Private wastewater disposal system/facility” means an individual sewer line and 
disposal system, or a community drainfield system that is privately owned and not 
connected to the city of Bonney Lake sewerage system. A private sewer wastewater 

Agenda Packet p. 39 of 96Agenda Packet p. 39 of 96



Page 4 of 16 
 

disposal system shall be allowed only when connection to the city of Bonney Lake sewer 
is not required by this chapter. 

27. “Properly shredded garbage” means the wastes from the preparation, cooking and 
dispensing of food that have been shredded to such a degree that all particles will be 
carried freely under the flow conditions normally prevailing in public sewers, with no 
particle greater than one-half centimeter in any dimension. 

28. “Public sewer” means a sewer in which all owners of abutting properties have equal 
rights, and is controlled by public authority. 

29. “Public works director” means the public works director of the City of Bonney Lake 
or his authorized agent. 

30. “Residential equivalent (RE)” means a system specific unit of measure used to 
express the amount of water and sewer consumed by a typical full-time single-family 
residence and is equivalent to one residential dwelling unit for purposes of computing 
connection charges and service rates. For the purposes of sewer usage, one RE shall be 
defined as a flow of 275 gallons per day with an average biological oxygen demand 
(BOD) of 246 mg/l and an average total suspended solids (TSS) of 269 mg/l. 

31. “Residential user” means a single-family or multifamily structure. 

32. “Residential wastewater pump” means a combination centrifugal pump and grinder 
unit for raw sewage service complete with piping, valves, controls starter, basis and all 
accessories required for a complete installation. Each pump station shall conform with 
the standards and specifications of the city of Bonney Lake. 

33. “Sanitary sewer” means a sewer which carries sewage and to which stormwaters, 
surface waters, ground waters and other unpolluted waters are not intentionally admitted. 

34. “Service connection” refers to the “side sewer” or pipeline with its appurtenances that 
branches off or connects the public lateral or trunk sewer in the right-of-way extending to 
the property line. 

35. “Sewage” means a combination of the water-carried wastes from residences, business 
buildings, institutions and industrial establishments. 

Agenda Packet p. 40 of 96Agenda Packet p. 40 of 96Agenda Packet p. 40 of 96Agenda Packet p. 40 of 96



Page 5 of 16 
 

36. “Sewage treatment plant” means any arrangement of devices and structures used for 
treating sewage. 

37. “Sewage works” means a pipe or conduit for carrying sewage. 

38. “Sewer” means a pipe or conduit for carrying sewage. 

39. “Shall” is mandatory. “May” is permissive. 

40. “Side sewer” means the service connection. 

41. “Slug” means any discharge of water, sewage or industrial waste which, in 
concentration of any given constituent or in quantity of flow, exceeds for any period of 
duration longer than 15 minutes more than five times the average 24-hour concentration 
of flows during normal operation. 

42. “Storm drain” (sometimes termed “storm sewer”) means a sewer which carries 
stormwaters and surface waters and drainage, but excludes sewage and industrial wastes, 
other than unpolluted cooling water. 

43. “Suspended solids” means solids that either float on the surface of or are in 
suspension in water, sewage or other liquids, and which are removable by laboratory 
filtering. 

44. “Single-family residence,” for the purposes of water and sewer utilities, means a 
structure maintained and used as a single dwelling unit. Notwithstanding that a dwelling 
unit shares one or more walls with another dwelling unit, it shall be deemed a single-
family residence if it has direct access to a street and shares neither heating facilities nor 
hot water equipment, nor any other essential facility or service, with any other dwelling 
unit. 

45. “User” means every person using any part of the public sewage works of the city of 
Bonney Lake. 

46. “User charge” means the periodic charges levied on all users of the public sewage 
works and shall, at a minimum, cover each user’s proportionate share of the cost of 
operation and maintenance to include replacement. 

Agenda Packet p. 41 of 96Agenda Packet p. 41 of 96



Page 6 of 16 
 

47. “Best management practices (BMP)” means a technique or methodology that, through 
experience and research, has proven to reliably lead to a desired result. 

48. “Facility” means any food processing establishment, food sales establishment, or food 
service establishment. 

49. “Fats, oils and greases (FOG)” are organic compounds derived from animal and/or 
plant sources that contain multiple carbon triglyceride molecules. These substances are 
detectable and measurable using analytical procedures established in Title 40 Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 136 (40 CFR 136). Commonly referred to as polar. 

50. “Food” is any raw, cooked, or processed edible substance, ice, or ingredient used or 
intended for use or sale in whole or in part for consumption. 

51. “Food processing establishment (FPE)” is a commercial establishment in which food 
is manufactured or packaged for consumption. 

52. “Food sales establishment” means any retail and wholesale grocery stores, retail 
seafood stores, food processing plants, bakeries, confectioneries, fruit, nut and vegetable 
stores and places of business and similar establishments, mobile or permanent, engaged 
in the sale of food primarily for consumption off premises. 

53. “Food service establishments (FSE)” means any establishment for the preparation and 
serving of meals, lunches, short orders, sandwiches, frozen desserts, or other edible 
products and/or are required to have a food business permit issued by Pierce County 
department of health. The term includes: restaurants, coffee shops, cafeterias, short order 
cafes, luncheonettes, taverns, lunchrooms, places which manufacture retail sandwiches, 
soda fountains, institutional cafeterias, catering establishments, food vending vehicles, 
and operations connected therewith; and similar facilities by whatever name called. 

54. “Grease” is rendered animal fat, vegetable shortening, and other such oily matter used 
for the purposes of and resulting from preparing and/or cooking food. 

55. “Grease removal unit” means a device designed to separate fats, oils, and grease from 
liquid waste prior to the wastewater entering the sanitary sewer system. 

Agenda Packet p. 42 of 96Agenda Packet p. 42 of 96Agenda Packet p. 42 of 96Agenda Packet p. 42 of 96



Page 7 of 16 
 

56. “Grease interceptor” means a plumbing appurtenance or appliance that is installed in 
a sanitary drainage system to capture FOG from a wastewater discharge, including 
Gravity Grease Interceptors (GGIs) and Hydro Mechanical Grease Interceptors (HGIs).an 
interceptor whose rated flow exceeds 50 gallons per minute (gpm) to serve one or more 
fixtures and which is remotely located underground and outside of a food service facility. 
It is designed to collect, contain or remove food wastes and grease from the waste stream 
while allowing the balance of the liquid waste (“gray water”) to discharge to the 
wastewater collection system by gravity. 

57. “Minimum design capability” means the design features of a grease interceptor and 
its ability to or the volume required to effectively intercept and retain greases from 
grease-laden wastewaters discharged to the sanitary sewer system. 

58. “Polar (animal and vegetable origin)” means any water or waste which has visible 
fats, oils or grease floating on the surface or adhering to the sides of the sample 
containers. 

59. “Rendering/disposal company” is a business that possesses a Pierce County pumper 
certification. 

60. “Uniform Plumbing Code (UPC)” is what governs the requirements for the 
installation, alteration, removal, replacement, repair or construction of all plumbing. 

61. “System development charge” or “SDC” means a fee charged to connect to the public 
sewer system, which represents the user’s equitable share of the cost of the system, 
pursuant to RCW 35.92.025. 

62. “Gravity Grease Interceptor (GGI)” means an interceptor whose rated flow exceeds 
50 gallons per minutes (gpm), has a minimum storage capacity of 500 gallons, and serves 
one or more fixtures, which is remotely located underground and outside of a food 
service facility. It is designed to collect, contain or remove food waste and grease from 
the sewer waste stream while allowing the balance of the liquid waste (gray water) to 
discharge to the wastewater collections system by gravity. 

63. “Hydro Mechanical Grease Interceptor (HGI)” means an interceptor whose rated flow 
is less than 50 gallons per minute (gpm), which uses a combination of gravitational, fluid 

Agenda Packet p. 43 of 96Agenda Packet p. 43 of 96



Page 8 of 16 
 

motion, and other materials-separation techniques, air entrainment, interior baffling, and 
other barriers to collect, contain, or store FOG. These interceptors are usually located 
inside the facility. 

64. “Oil/Water Separator” means a large capacity underground vault installed between a 
drain and the connecting sewer pipe. These vaults are designed with baffles or coalescing 
plates to trap sediments and retain floating oils. 

 
 
Section 2.  Section 13.12.320 of the Bonney Lake Municipal Code and the 

corresponding portions of Ordinance No. 1266 are hereby amended to read as follows:  

13.12.320 FOG prevention requirements. Grease, oil and sand interceptors. 

A. New Facilities. On or after the effective date of the ordinance codified in this section, 
any Grease interceptors required.  All commercial establishments discharging liquid 
waste containing grease in excessive amounts, or any flammable wastes, sand, or other 
harmful ingredients that, in the opinion of the Mayor or Mayor’s designee as set forth in 
BLMC 13.12.290 and 13.12.300, are harmful, shall be required to install, operate and 
maintain an approved type and adequately sized grease interceptor necessary to maintain 
compliance with the requirements as described in BLMC 13.12.290 and 13.12.300 of this 
Section.  The Mayor or Mayor’s designee in coordination with the public works and 
community development departments, shall set the parameters to determine the type of 
grease interceptor required for each commercial establishment. Such parameters shall be 
designed to ensure that commercial establishments use grease interceptors that meet the 
city’s grease control requirements as described in BLMC 13.12.290 and 13.12.300.   The 
parameters shall also ensure the minimization of polar and non-polar fats, oils and 
greases in amounts that cause a visible sheen on the discharge or in the public sewer 
system; the build-up of grease in any public sewer facility; accumulations either alone or 
in combination with other discharges that cause obstruction of the public sewer system; 
and any water or waste which contains more than 100 parts per million by weight of fats, 
oils and grease as measured using analytical procedures established in 40 CFR Part 136. 

B. Best management practices required.  Existing Facilities with Grease Removal. On or 
after the effective date of the ordinance codified in this section, all existing commercial 
establishments discharging liquid waste containing grease in excessive amounts, or any 

Agenda Packet p. 44 of 96Agenda Packet p. 44 of 96Agenda Packet p. 44 of 96Agenda Packet p. 44 of 96



Page 9 of 16 
 

flammable wastes, sand or other harmful ingredients shall be permitted to operate and 
maintain existing grease interceptors or grease traps; provided, that the equipment is in 
efficient operating condition to maintain discharges of less than 100 ppm FOG. All such 
commercial establishments discharging FOG are required to develop and implement best 
management practices (BMPs) to reduce the quantity of fats, oil and grease discharged to 
the sanitary sewer collection system. The Mayor or Mayor’s designee shall develop 
guidelines on best management practices, and shall make said guidelines available to 
regulated establishments.  Any facilities that are known to cause grease-related cleaning 
activities in the sanitary sewer, a grease-related sanitary sewer overflow or fail to 
implement and enforce BMPs will be required to install a properly sized and functioning 
grease interceptor within 90 calendar days from notification by the city or as otherwise 
specified by other governing agencies. Grease interceptors shall be designed to meet the 
city’s grease control requirements as described in BLMC 13.12.290and 13.12.300 (polar 
and non-polar fats, oils and greases in amounts that cause a visible sheen on the discharge 
or in the public sewer system, a build-up of grease in any public sewer facility, which 
accumulations either alone or in combination with other discharges cause obstruction of 
the public sewer system, or any water or waste which contains more than 100 parts per 
million by weight of fats, oils and grease as measured using analytical procedures 
established in 40 CFR Part 136). 

C. Existing Facilities without Grease Removal. Any commercial establishment 
discharging liquid waste containing grease in excessive amounts, or any flammable 
wastes, sand or other harmful ingredients that are known to cause grease-related cleaning 
activities in the sanitary sewer or a grease-related sanitary sewer overflow or fail to 
implement and enforce BMPs will be required to install a properly sized and functioning 
grease interceptor within 90 calendar days from notification by the city or as otherwise 
specified by other governing agencies. Grease interceptors shall be designed to meet the 
city’s grease control requirements as described in BLMC 13.12.290 and 13.12.300 (polar 
and non-polar fats, oils and greases in amounts that cause a visible sheen on the discharge 
or in the public sewer system, a build-up of grease in any public sewer facility, which 
accumulations either alone or in combination with other discharges cause obstruction of 
the public sewer system, or any water or waste which contains more than 100 parts per 
million by weight of fats, oils and grease as measured using analytical procedures 
established in 40 CFR 136). 

Agenda Packet p. 45 of 96Agenda Packet p. 45 of 96



Page 10 of 16 
 

CD. FOG Control Program. All facilities commercial establishments discharging FOG 
are required to submit and adhere to a FOG control program as part of the business 
license application process. The goal of the program is to implement reasonable and 
technically feasible controls of free-floating FOG. The basic components of the program 
should shall include: 

1. A written program articulating management and corporate support for the plan 
and a commitment to implement planned activities and achieve established goals 
through the implementation and enforcement of best management practices; 

2. A description of the facility type and a summary of the products made and/or 
service provided; 

3. Quantities of fats, oils and grease brought into the facility, amounts contained in 
the product, and quantities discharged to the sanitary sewer; 

4. A description of current reduction, recycling, and treatment activities. This 
includes a description of the type and capacity of pre-treatment equipment used to 
collect FOG prior to discharge into the City sewer system; 

5. Schematics of the process areas illustrating drains, interceptors, and discharge 
points connected to the sanitary sewer;  

6. Specific performance goals and implementation schedule; and 

7. Initial training for new employees and refresher training every six (6) months. 

DE. Enzymes, Bacteria and Other Agents. The direct addition into the building plumbing, 
grease trap or interceptor of enzymes, chemicals or other agents designed to emulsify the 
grease compounds is prohibited. Grease trap or interceptor design and sizing criteria are 
based on gravimetric separation for grease and solids removal. The addition of enzymes 
or chemical emulsion agents would impede the gravimetric separation and defeats the 
purpose of the grease trap or interceptor. Any attempt to modify the trap into a biological 
reactor by adding bacterial or microbial agents is also prohibited. 

 
EF. Grease Interceptor Standards.  

Agenda Packet p. 46 of 96Agenda Packet p. 46 of 96Agenda Packet p. 46 of 96Agenda Packet p. 46 of 96



Page 11 of 16 
 

 
1. Grease interceptors are limited to one of two types: 
 

a. Hydro Mechanical Grease Interceptors (HGI); or 
 

b. Gravity Grease Interceptors (GGI).  
 

12. Each facility is solely responsible for the cost, installation, cleaning and 
maintenance of the grease interceptor; 

 
23. Grease interceptor sizing and installation shall conform to the requirements 
contained in the current edition of the Uniform Plumbing Code (UPC) or other 
criteria as determined by the Mayor or Mayor’s designee on a case by case basis 
based on review of relevant information, including but not limited to grease 
interceptor performance, waste stream characteristics, facility location, maintenance 
needs, and/or inspection needs; 

 
34. The minimum storage capacity of any Gravity Grease Interceptor is will be 500 
gallons. Supporting sizing calculations shall be submitted to the city for approval; 

 
45. Grease interceptors shall be installed in accordance with City Standard Details 
SS14; 
 
56. Grease interceptors shall be installed at a location where they are easily 
accessible for sample collection, inspection, and cleaning and removal of retained 
grease. The grease interceptor may not be installed inside any part of the building 
and the location must meet the approval of the city;  
 
67. Grease interceptors shall be located in the food service establishment’s lateral 
line between all fixtures which may introduce grease into the sanitary sewer and the 
connection to the sanitary sewer collection system. Such fixtures shall include but 
are not be limited to sinks, dishwashers, floor drains for food preparation and 
storage areas, mop sinks, and any other fixture which is determined to be a potential 
source of grease; 

78. Under no condition is any commercial or noncommercial establishment, or 
residential property allowed to discharge liquid waste containing grease, or any 
flammable wastes, or other harmful ingredients, in the opinion of the public works 
director of public works as set forth in BLMC 13.12.290 and 13.12.300, into a 
stormwater system; 

Agenda Packet p. 47 of 96Agenda Packet p. 47 of 96



Page 12 of 16 
 

89. In accordance with BLMC 13.12.290 and 13.12.300, g Grease interceptors shall 
be equipped with a sampling port at the outlet of the interceptor. Inspection tees and 
manholes must enable the city to monitor and test the discharge for compliance 
with the city’s codes and regulations; 

10. Grease trap or interceptor design and sizing criteria are based on gravimetric 
separation for grease and solids removal.  

GF. Inspection. The City of Bonney Lake shall inspect grease interceptors and grease 
traps on both a scheduled basis and unscheduled, unannounced basis to determine 
whether the requirements set forth in this section are being met. Each establishment using 
a grease interceptor or grease trap shall allow city of Bonney Lake officials bearing 
proper credentials and identifications access at all reasonable times or during normal 
hours of operation to all parts of the premises for the purpose of inspection, observation, 
records examination, measurement, sampling and testing in accordance with the 
provisions of this section. Refusal to allow entry on-site, threatening behavior, and/or 
refusal to schedule an appointment for entry shall constitute a violation of this section. 
The city shall have the right to set up on any user’s property devices necessary for 
conducting wastewater sampling inspection, compliance monitoring and/or metering 
operations. All costs for laboratory collection and analysis shall be the responsibility of 
the establishment. During inspection, at a minimum city officials shall consider the 
following: 

1. Grease interceptors shall be considered out of compliance if the total volume of 
grease and solids displaces more than 10 percent of the effective volume of the final 
chamber of the interceptor. Grease interceptors must be serviced and emptied of 
accumulated waste content as required maintaining needed in order to maintain a 
minimum design capability or effective volume, but not less than once every 90 
calendar days. If a facility determines that cleaning every 90 calendar days is 
unnecessary in order to remain in compliance with requirements as described in 
BLMC 13.12.290 and 13.12.300, the facility may make a written application for a 
variance from the cleaning schedule; 

2. Sanitary wastes cannot shall not be introduced into the grease interceptor; 

Agenda Packet p. 48 of 96Agenda Packet p. 48 of 96Agenda Packet p. 48 of 96Agenda Packet p. 48 of 96



Page 13 of 16 
 

3. Any facility that has a grease interceptor shall utilize a licensed 
rendering/disposal company to clean the interceptor and dispose of the waste; 

4. Wastes removed from a grease interceptor shall be disposed of at a facility 
permitted to receive such waste. Neither grease, solids nor liquids removed from 
grease interceptors shall be returned to any grease interceptor, private sanitary 
sewer line, any portion of the sanitary sewer collection system or any portion of the 
stormwater system; 

5. All facilities shall maintain a written record of inspection and maintenance 
activities and the rendering/disposal company manifest for a minimum of three 
years. All such records shall be submitted to the city and made available for on-site 
inspection during all operating hours; 

6. Flushing the grease interceptor with large quantities of water in an effort to cause 
accumulated grease to pass through is prohibited; and 

7. No debris or storage units shall be stacked or placed within a three-foot radius of 
the grease interceptor’s access lids or sampling ports. 

HG. Monitoring and Reporting. Each establishment with a grease interceptor or grease 
trap shall retain maintenance records showing at a minimum the date of service, volume 
pumped, name of waste hauler, and waste disposal location for each grease removal 
device located on the premises. The records shall be kept a minimum of three years and 
provided to the city upon request. 

IH. Enforcement. Notice of Violation and opportunity to cure noncompliant condition.  In 
the event that a grease interceptor or other grease removal device fails a visual or effluent 
sample analysis inspection, or any other condition exists that does not comply with this 
Chapter, the user shall be given written notice of the noncompliant condition and must 
take immediate steps to bring the grease interceptor or other grease removal device into 
compliance. The City-issued Notice of Violation (NOV) shall set a time limit for 
compliance of twenty-one calendar days after the NOV is issued; however, the NOV time 
limit may be adjusted in a way that is appropriate to the nature and degree of 
noncompliance, the nature of the needed repairs, and whether the noncompliance creates 
the need for emergency repairs. The user is responsible for all associated costs. 

Agenda Packet p. 49 of 96Agenda Packet p. 49 of 96



Page 14 of 16 
 

I. Failure on the part of any user to maintain continued compliance with any requirements 
set forth in this section may result in the initiation of enforcement action. Such 
enforcement action may include but is not limited to a warning letter, notice of violation 
(NOV), administrative fine or facility closure as outlined in 
BLMC 1.16.010 and 1.16.020. Failure to respond to corrective measures outlined in any 
enforcement notice may result in the user’s termination of service to the sewer system 
owned, operated and maintained by the city of Bonney Lake. 

1. First violation.  Upon discovery of a condition that does not comply with this 
Section, the City shall send the violator an NOV with reference to the type of 
noncompliant condition. Failure to cure the noncompliant condition within the 
time prescribed in the NOV shall constitute a first violation and result in a $500 
fine. 

2. Second violation within twelve months of receiving an NOV:  An additional 
fine of $1,000.  

3. Third violation within twelve months of receiving an NOV:  An additional fine 
of $2,000. 

4. Fourth and subsequent violations within twelve months of receiving an NOV:  
An additional fine of $4,000. 

5. For purposes of this subsection, a “violation” shall be deemed to occur upon 
failure to cure a noncompliant condition within the time prescribed in an NOV.  
The third issuance of a NOV for the same or similar noncompliant condition 
within 12 months shall result in a fine of $1,500, even if the violations are 
corrected. 

6. Termination of Service. In addition to the foregoing penalties and not in any 
way a limitation thereof, chronic violators who incur six (6) or more NOVs in a 
twelve month period may be subject to termination of water service by the city.  

7. If an obstruction of the sanitary sewer collection system occurs that causes a 
sanitary sewer backup and/or overflow and such overflow can be is attributed in 
part or in whole to an accumulation of grease in the sanitary sewer main line, the 

Agenda Packet p. 50 of 96Agenda Packet p. 50 of 96Agenda Packet p. 50 of 96Agenda Packet p. 50 of 96



Page 15 of 16 
 

city of Bonney Lake will take appropriate enforcement actions, as stipulated in 
BLMC 1.16.010 and 1.16.020, against the generator or contributor of such grease. 
These actions may include a civil action for recovery of all costs associated with 
clean-up activities and repair of any damaged facilities., fines, civil penalties or a 
discontinuance of sanitary sewer service. 

8. Any person who knowingly makes any false statements, representation, record, 
report, or other document filed with the city or who falsifies, tampers with or 
knowingly renders inaccurate any monitoring device or method required under 
this document is subject to administrative fines or facility closure as outlined in 
BLMC 1.16.010 and 1.16.020. 

9. Appeals.  Issuance of an NOV and penalties shall be subject to appeal. An 
appeal may not be filed simply because the violator does not want to pay a 
penalty.  In order for an appeal to be filed and considered, the appellant must have 
a basis for appeal and be able to document that City inspectors erred in finding the 
establishment to be out of compliance with the standards and practices outlined in 
this Chapter. Requests for appeal shall be in writing, addressed to the Mayor or 
designee, submitted within 15 calendar days of the NOV or penalty, and 
accompanied by an appeal fee of $50.  The request for appeal shall set forth the 
basis of the dispute and the facts supporting the appeal.  The appeal shall be heard 
by the Mayor or designee within 60 calendar days.  After the hearing, the Mayor 
or designee shall uphold, modify, or reverse the decision. The written decision 
shall be sent by certified mail to the appellant. The decision on appeal shall be 
final.    

J I. Exemptions. The Mayor or Mayor’s designee may approve exemptions to the 
procedures set forth in this section upon request by a business and upon confirmation by 
the director, in his sole discretion, that such exemption is warranted. Criteria for approval 
of such an exemption may include businesses that do not cook food on site and as a result 
do not generate more grease than a single-family residence does. The Mayor or Mayor’s 
designee may condition approval of an exemption upon terms that he deems appropriate 
under the circumstances. Written requests and justification for such an exemption are 

Agenda Packet p. 51 of 96Agenda Packet p. 51 of 96



Page 16 of 16 
 

required from such a business. Any business seeking such an exemption shall submit a 
written request and justification to the Mayor or Mayor’s designee.  

Section 3. Severability.  If any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this 
ordinance should be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or 
constitutionality of any other section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance. 

 
Section 4.  Administration.  The Mayor is hereby authorized to implement such 

administrative procedures as may be necessary to carry out the legislative intent of this 
ordinance.   

 
Section 5.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after 

its passage, approval, and publication as required by law. 
 
 
PASSED by the City Council and approved by the Mayor this 24th day of 

February, 2015.  
 

      ________________________________ 
      Neil Johnson, Jr., Mayor 
  
AUTHENTICATED:  
  
_________________________________  
Harwood T. Edvalson, MMC, City Clerk 
  
APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
 
_________________________________  
Kathleen Haggard, City Attorney  

Agenda Packet p. 52 of 96Agenda Packet p. 52 of 96Agenda Packet p. 52 of 96Agenda Packet p. 52 of 96



N:\Administrative Services\City Clerk\2015 Agendas\Agenda Assembly\2015-02-24 Mtg\res2435 garden\AB15-23 Community Garden Agreement with 
BLCR.doc  Version Oct. 2010 

City of Bonney Lake, Washington 
City Council Agenda Bill (AB) 

 
Department/Staff Contact: 

Executive / Gary Leaf 
Meeting/Workshop Date: 

24 February 2015 
Agenda Bill Number: 

AB15-23 

Agenda Item Type: 
Resolution 

Ordinance/Resolution Number: 
2435 

Councilmember Sponsor: 
Dan Swatman 

 

Agenda Subject:  Community Garden 
 

Full Title/Motion:   A Motion Of The City Council Of The City Of Bonney Lake, Pierce County, 
Washington, Authorizing The Mayor To Sign An Agreement With Bonney Lake Community Resources 
For Operation Of The Bonney Lake Community Garden . 
 

Administrative Recommendation:  Approve 
 

Background Summary:  Bonney Lake Community Resources (AKA Bonney Lake Food Bank)  has 
managed since 2010 Bonney Lake's annual community garden on behalf of the City of Bonney Lake on 
city-owned downtown property.  Staff recommends renewing this agreement for 2015 and adding a 
clause that allows for its renewability similar to the concession stand agreement.  The City's expenditures 
this year will again be approximately $2,000 for irrigation.  As in previous years, there will be no fee 
associated with community members who want a plot.  Voluntary donations will be accepted. 
Attachments:  Yes - resolution and agreement 
 

BUDGET INFORMATION 
Budget Amount 

2,000.00 
Current Balance 

-0- 
Required Expenditure 

2,000.00 
Budget Balance 

-0- 
Budget Explanation: Irrigation costs are included in the 2015 Facilities budget 
 

COMMITTEE, BOARD & COMMISSION REVIEW 
Council Committee Review: Finance Committee 

Date: 10 February 2015 
Approvals:  Yes No 

Chair/Councilmember Dan Swatman    
Councilmember Donn Lewis    
Councilmember Katrina Minton-Davis    

 Forward to:         Consent  
Agenda: 

 

 Yes     No 

Commission/Board Review:       
Hearing Examiner Review:       
 

COUNCIL ACTION 
Workshop Date(s):        Public Hearing Date(s):       
Meeting Date(s):        Tabled to Date:       
 

APPROVALS 
Director: 
      

Mayor: 
      

Date Reviewed  
by City Attorney:  
(if applicable): 

N/A 

 
 

Agenda Packet p. 53 of 96Agenda Packet p. 53 of 96



This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Packet p. 54 of 96



RESOLUTION NO. 2435 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BONNEY 
LAKE, PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING THE 
MAYOR TO SIGN AN AGREEMENT WITH BONNEY LAKE 
COMMUNITY RESOURCES FOR OPERATION OF THE BONNEY 
LAKE COMMUNITY GARDEN.  

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Bonney Lake wishes to make a community garden available to 
the public on city-owned property; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Bonney Lake Community Resources successfully operated the community 
garden on behalf of the City of Bonney Lake since 2010; and  
 

WHEREAS, Bonney Lake Community Resources is willing to operate such community 
garden in 2014 on the same terms and conditions as 2010-2014;  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Bonney Lake, Washington, 
does hereby resolve that the Mayor is authorized to sign the Agreement between the City 
of Bonney Lake and Bonney Lake Community Resources, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL this 24th day of February, 2015. 
 
 

      
Neil Johnson, Jr., Mayor 

 
AUTHENTICATED: 
 
       
Harwood T. Edvalson, MMC, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
       
Kathleen Haggard, City Attorney 
 

 

Agenda Packet p. 55 of 96Agenda Packet p. 55 of 96



 1 

LEASE AGREEMENT 

FOR A COMMUNITY GARDEN 

ON DOWNTOWN PROPERTY 
 
 
    This Agreement, by the City of Bonney Lake, Pierce County, Washington, hereinafter called 

the City, and Bonney Lake Community Resources, hereinafter called BLCR, is made on the 

following terms and conditions: 

    BLCR has the necessary experience and personnel, and is willing to enter into this Agreement 

to operate said community garden; and 

    The City desires to partner with BLCR to successfully provide a community garden for 

community benefit and mutual benefits for BLCR patrons and the Bonney Lake Senior Center; 

    Witnesseth, that in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements herein contained, 

the parties hereto do mutually agree as follows: 

 

I.  Grant, Term, and Operation of Concession 

  

     1.1  The City, acting pursuant to its vested authority, grants to BLCR, for the term and upon 

the conditions and provisions hereafter specified the right and privilege to operate and maintain a 

community garden on City property located at 18417-18421 89th Street East.  This grant is 

expressly conditioned on operation of a community garden that is consistent with and in 

furtherance of the public's use. 

 

    1.2  The term of this agreement shall be from   January  1, 2015  , to    December  31, 2015.  

This contract may be renewed annually upon mutual consent of the City and BLCR.  BLCR shall 

notify the City, in writing, at least 90 days prior to expiration of the term of this agreement, its 

desire to continue or cancel this contract for the next year.  Renewal will be at the City’s 

discretion. In the event of termination of this Agreement, for any reason, prior to the termination 

date specified in this section, no refund shall be made of any payment(s) already made pursuant 

to section 1.5 of this Agreement. 

 

    1.3  BLCR will maintain its 501(c)3 status for the duration of this agreement.   

Agenda Packet p. 56 of 96Agenda Packet p. 56 of 96Agenda Packet p. 56 of 96Agenda Packet p. 56 of 96



 2 

 

 1.4  BLCR shall coordinate all volunteer efforts.  The Mayor and/or his designee shall provide 

ongoing, general guidance and input to the City’s need for a successful community garden, but 

such guidance shall not be construed to create an employment relationship between the parties. 

BLCR will administer the project as an independent contractor, and its employees, agents, and 

volunteers will not be under the control or supervision of Bonney Lake, or its employees, agents 

or volunteers.  

 

    1.5 A lease payment of $1.00 shall be remitted to the City of Bonney Lake upon signing of 

this Agreement.   

 

    1.6  The community garden will be located on three City owned lots located at 18417-18429 

89th Street East, Bonney Lake. 

 

 1.7  The City shall provide irrigation for the community garden with garden hoses hooked up 

from the adjacent City-owned parcel to the east.  BLCR shall remove solid waste from the site. 

 

   1.8  BLCR may collect voluntary, charitable donations while running the community garden.  

There shall be no mandatory fee.  BLCR shall leave at least 50% of the available space to the 

general public.  Plot size will be listed on an application form.  The City will provide to BLCR 

request forms in a timely manner.  The City shall oversee and approve the selection list for plots 

available for public use.  

 

   1.9  BLCR agrees to purchase and maintain a Liability insurance policy from an insurance 

company licensed in Washington and rated with AM Best no lower than a B+ in the amount of 

$1,000,000.00, and to hold the City harmless, defend, and indemnify it from any accidents, 

injuries or claims of any kind resulting from BLCR's operations.  BLCR agrees to name the City 

as an additional insured on the insurance policy required above in this paragraph.  BLCR shall 

provide a certificate of insurance to the City. 

 

    1.8 BLCR shall not erect any sign on the City property or in the vicinity thereof without 

obtaining the advance approval of the City. 

Agenda Packet p. 57 of 96Agenda Packet p. 57 of 96



 3 

 

    1.9 BLCR shall strictly obey all laws of the State of Washington and all Ordinances of the 

City of Bonney Lake, and will not allow the violation of any of these laws, or ordinances by any 

other party on or adjacent to the premises in which this concession is operated. 

     

 II.  Non-Discrimination Policy 

     

 2.1   Concessionaire agrees that in all hiring or employment made possible or resulting from this 

Agreement: 

 

     (1)  There shall be no discrimination against any employee or volunteer because of sex, age, 

race color, creed, national origin, marital status, veteran status, or the presence of any sensory, 

mental, or physical handicap, unless based upon a bona fide occupational qualification, and this 

requirement shall apply to but not be limited to the following:  employment (including , 

advertising, lay-off or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for 

training, including apprenticeship. 

 

     (2)  No person shall be denied, or subjected to discrimination in receipt of, the benefit of any 

services or activities made possible by or resulting from this Agreement on the grounds of sex, 

race, color, creed, national origin, age (except minimum age and retirement provisions), veteran 

status, marital status, or the presence of any sensory, mental or physical handicap. 

 

     (3)  Any violation of this provision shall be considered a violation of a material provision of 

this Agreement and shall be grounds for cancellation, termination or suspension in whole or in 

part, of the Agreement by the parties and may result in ineligibility for further agreements. 

 

III   Termination by City 

 

     3.1 If, in the judgment of the Mayor, the manner of operation of the community garden does 

not meet the requirements of this Agreement, or if BLCR is in default of any other term of this 

Agreement, City shall give BLCR a written notice specifying the particulars of the unsatisfactory 

performance. 

Agenda Packet p. 58 of 96Agenda Packet p. 58 of 96Agenda Packet p. 58 of 96Agenda Packet p. 58 of 96



 4 

 

     3.2 If BLCR fails or refuses to remedy such unsatisfactory performance or default within five 

(5) calendar days after receipt of such notice, the City may terminate this Agreement 

immediately.  The decision of the Mayor on any such matter shall be final. 

 

     3.3  Notwithstanding the above, nonpayment of the lease amount or of any installment thereof 

five (5) calendar days after said fee is due shall be full justification for the City to take 

immediate possession of the concession and premises, and for immediate cancellation of this 

Agreement. 

 

IV.  Termination by BLCR 

 

    4.1 BLCR may terminate this Agreement by giving thirty (30) days written notice to City of 

such intention to terminate. 

 

V. No Assignment 

 

     5.1 Neither this Agreement nor any rights or privileges hereunder shall be assigned or sublet 

without the consent of the City.  Consent to assignment shall not be unreasonably withheld by 

the City. 

 

VI.  Interpretive Provisions 

 

    6.1 The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be binding on the parties hereto, their 

heirs, successors, administrators, and assigns, and shall be construed in accordance with the laws 

of the State of Washington. 

 

    6.2 TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE of this Agreement, and of each and every term, condition 

and provision herein. 

 

    6.3 The waiver by the City of any breach of any term contained in this Agreement shall not be 

deemed to be a waiver of such term for any subsequent breach of the same or any other term. 

Agenda Packet p. 59 of 96Agenda Packet p. 59 of 96



 5 

 

    6.4 Each term of this Agreement is material and breach by BLCR of any one of the terms 

herein shall be a material breach of the entire Agreement and shall be grounds for the 

termination of the entire Agreement by the City. 

 

    6.5 If any term or provision of this Agreement or the application of any term or provision to 

any person or circumstance is invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement, or the 

application of the term or provision or persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is 

held invalid, or unenforceable, will not be affected and will continue in full force. 

 

    6.6 This Agreement contains the entire agreement between BLCR and the City of Bonney 

Lake and there are no promises, conditions, terms, obligations, statements, or guarantees other 

than those contained herein.  No modifications or amendments shall be valid unless in writing 

and fully executed by all parties. 

 

    6.7 This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Washington. Venue for any 

lawsuit arising out of this Agreement shall be in Pierce County, Washington. The prevailing 

party in any such action shall be entitled to an award of reasonable attorney’s fees and costs. 

 

     IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed 

the day and year first hereinabove written. 
 
ATTEST:                                   CITY OF BONNEY LAKE 
 
_____________________________      _____________________________ 
Harwood T. Edvalson                                               Neil Johnson Jr. 
City Clerk                                 Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:                 BLCR 
 
_____________________________      ______________________________ 
Kathleen Haggard,                          CEO 
City Attorney 
 
 

 

Agenda Packet p. 60 of 96Agenda Packet p. 60 of 96Agenda Packet p. 60 of 96Agenda Packet p. 60 of 96



Agenda Packet p. 61 of 96Agenda Packet p. 61 of 96



Agenda Packet p. 62 of 96Agenda Packet p. 62 of 96Agenda Packet p. 62 of 96Agenda Packet p. 62 of 96



Agenda Packet p. 63 of 96Agenda Packet p. 63 of 96



Agenda Packet p. 64 of 96Agenda Packet p. 64 of 96Agenda Packet p. 64 of 96Agenda Packet p. 64 of 96



Agenda Packet p. 65 of 96Agenda Packet p. 65 of 96



Agenda Packet p. 66 of 96Agenda Packet p. 66 of 96Agenda Packet p. 66 of 96Agenda Packet p. 66 of 96



Agenda Packet p. 67 of 96Agenda Packet p. 67 of 96



Agenda Packet p. 68 of 96Agenda Packet p. 68 of 96Agenda Packet p. 68 of 96Agenda Packet p. 68 of 96



Agenda Packet p. 69 of 96Agenda Packet p. 69 of 96



Agenda Packet p. 70 of 96Agenda Packet p. 70 of 96Agenda Packet p. 70 of 96Agenda Packet p. 70 of 96



Agenda Packet p. 71 of 96Agenda Packet p. 71 of 96



Agenda Packet p. 72 of 96Agenda Packet p. 72 of 96Agenda Packet p. 72 of 96Agenda Packet p. 72 of 96



Agenda Packet p. 73 of 96Agenda Packet p. 73 of 96



This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Packet p. 74 of 96Agenda Packet p. 74 of 96Agenda Packet p. 74 of 96Agenda Packet p. 74 of 96



C:\Users\johnv\Desktop\AB15-26 School Impact Fees\AB15-26 School Impact Fees.docx 
 Version Oct. 2010 

City of Bonney Lake, Washington 

City Council Agenda Bill (AB) 
 

Department/Staff Contact: 

Community Development /  
John P. Vodopich, AICP 

Meeting/Workshop Date: 

24 February 2015 
Agenda Bill Number: 

AB15-26 

Agenda Item Type: 

Ordinance 
Ordinance/Resolution Number: 

D15-26 
Councilmember Sponsor: 

James Rackley 
 

Agenda Subject:  Sumner School District Impact Fees 
 

Full Title/Motion:   An Ordinance  Of The City Council Of The City Of Bonney Lake, Pierce County, 
Washington, Amending Chapter 19.08 Of The Bonney Lake Municipal Code And Ordinance No. 1478 
Relating To School Impact Fees. 
 

Administrative Recommendation:  Approve 
 

Background Summary:  The Sumner School District has updated their capital facilities plan, which is 
incorporated into the City's Comprehensive Plan's Capital Facilities Element (CFE) by reference.  As a 
result of the update, the School District is requesting an increase in school impact fees.  The fess are 
currently $3,215 for single-family and $415 for multi-family.  The proposed fees are $3,270 for single-
family and $1,725 for multi-family.  Pierce County has raised their rates for 2015 to $3,270 for single-
family and $1,725 for multi-family.  The District has requested that the City update the impact fees in 
amounts not less than Pierce County's fees for 2015. 

Attachments:  Ordinance D15-26 & Sumner School District Request dated January 28, 2015 
 

BUDGET INFORMATION 

Budget Amount 

      
Current Balance 

      
Required Expenditure 

      
Budget Balance 

      

Budget Explanation:       

 

COMMITTEE, BOARD & COMMISSION REVIEW 

Council Committee Review: Finance Committee 
Date: February 10, 2015 

Approvals:  Yes No 

Chair/Councilmember Dan Swatman    

Councilmember Donn Lewis    

Councilmember Katrina Minton-Davis    

 Forward to:         Consent  

Agenda: 

 

 Yes     No 

Commission/Board Review:       

Hearing Examiner Review:       
 

COUNCIL ACTION 

Workshop Date(s):        Public Hearing Date(s):       

Meeting Date(s):        Tabled to Date:       
 

APPROVALS 

Director: 

John P. Vodopich, AICP 
Mayor: 

      

Date Reviewed  

by City Attorney:  
(if applicable): 

      

 

 

Agenda Packet p. 75 of 96Agenda Packet p. 75 of 96



Agenda Packet p. 76 of 96Agenda Packet p. 76 of 96Agenda Packet p. 76 of 96Agenda Packet p. 76 of 96



Page 1 

ORDINANCE NO. D15-26 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BONNEY LAKE, PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON, AMENDING 

CHAPTER 19.08 OF THE BONNEY LAKE MUNICIPAL CODE 

AND ORDINANCE NO. 1478 RELATING TO SCHOOL IMPACT 

FEES. 
 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Sumner School District has requested an adjustment to the 
school impact fees as a result of its 2014-2020 capital facilities plan and updated impact 
fee study; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City desires to comply with the Washington Growth 
Management Act by providing for the growth related costs of school facilities through the 
continued imposition of school impact fees.  
 

 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BONNEY 

LAKE, WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1.  BLMC 19.08.120 and Section 2 of Ordinance 1478 is hereby amended 
to read as follows:  
 
19.08.120 School impact fees. 
The school impact fee schedules set forth in this section are generated from the formula 
for calculating impact fees set forth in the district’s capital facilities plan. Except as 
otherwise provided in BLMC 19.08.040, 19.08.050 and 19.08.140, all new residential 
developments in the city will be charged the school impact fees in accordance with the 
appropriate schedule below. The feepayer shall pay the school impact fee based on the 
schedule for the school district in which the development is located. 
 

School Impact Fee Schedules 

(applies to residential development only) 

Sumner School District No. 320: 

Single-family – detached (including manufactured homes 
and mobile homes on individual lots) 

$3,215.00 

$3,270.00 

Multi-family – per dwelling unit (including townhouses) $415 

$1,725 

White River School District No. 416: 

Agenda Packet p. 77 of 96Agenda Packet p. 77 of 96



Page 2 

Single-family – detached (including manufactured homes 
and mobile homes on individual lots) 

$0 

Multifamily per dwelling unit (including townhouses) $0 

Section 2.  Severability.  If any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this 
ordinance should be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or 
constitutionality of any other section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance. 

Section 3.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after 
its passage, approval, and publication as required by law. 

PASSED by the City Council and approved by the Mayor this day of 
, 2015.  

Neil Johnson, Jr., Mayor 

AUTHENTICATED: 

Harwood T. Edvalson, MMC, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Kathleen Haggard, City Attorney 

Agenda Packet p. 78 of 96Agenda Packet p. 78 of 96Agenda Packet p. 78 of 96Agenda Packet p. 78 of 96



Agenda Packet p. 79 of 96Agenda Packet p. 79 of 96



Agenda Packet p. 80 of 96Agenda Packet p. 80 of 96Agenda Packet p. 80 of 96Agenda Packet p. 80 of 96



Agenda Packet p. 81 of 96Agenda Packet p. 81 of 96



Agenda Packet p. 82 of 96Agenda Packet p. 82 of 96Agenda Packet p. 82 of 96Agenda Packet p. 82 of 96



Agenda Packet p. 83 of 96Agenda Packet p. 83 of 96



Agenda Packet p. 84 of 96Agenda Packet p. 84 of 96Agenda Packet p. 84 of 96Agenda Packet p. 84 of 96



Agenda Packet p. 85 of 96Agenda Packet p. 85 of 96



Agenda Packet p. 86 of 96Agenda Packet p. 86 of 96Agenda Packet p. 86 of 96Agenda Packet p. 86 of 96



Agenda Packet p. 87 of 96Agenda Packet p. 87 of 96



Agenda Packet p. 88 of 96Agenda Packet p. 88 of 96Agenda Packet p. 88 of 96Agenda Packet p. 88 of 96



Agenda Packet p. 89 of 96Agenda Packet p. 89 of 96



Agenda Packet p. 90 of 96Agenda Packet p. 90 of 96Agenda Packet p. 90 of 96Agenda Packet p. 90 of 96



Agenda Packet p. 91 of 96Agenda Packet p. 91 of 96



This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Packet p. 92 of 96Agenda Packet p. 92 of 96Agenda Packet p. 92 of 96



City of Bonney Lake, Washington 
City Council Agenda Bill (AB) 

 
Department/Staff Contact: 
Executive / Don Morrison 

Meeting/Workshop Date: 
24 February 2015 

Agenda Bill Number: 
AB15-30 

Agenda Item Type: 
Resolution 

Ordinance/Resolution Number: 
2440 

Councilmember Sponsor: 
      

 

Agenda Subject:  Lease Termination Buyout Agreement for the former City Hall Annex building. 
 

Full Title/Motion:   A Resolution Of The City Council Authorizing The Mayor To Sign A Lease 
Termination Agreement For The Former City Hall Annex. 
 

Administrative Recommendation:  Approve 
 

Background Summary:  Coldwell Banker Bain (CBB) leases the former City Hall Annex building. The 
firm intends to close their regional Bonney Lake IT operation, and have asked to terminate the lease. 
After negotiations, the parties have agreed to a lease buyout amount of $25,000 plus the City will keep 
the AC unit CBB installed in the building. It is anticipated that the City will be able to release the 
building relatively soon, and likely at a higher rate.   
Attachments:  Resolution; Termination Buyout Agreement 
 

BUDGET INFORMATION 
Budget Amount 

      
Current Balance 

      
Required Expenditure 

      
Budget Balance 

      
Budget Explanation: Buyout is $25,000 plus the City keeps the newly installed AC unit.  
 

COMMITTEE, BOARD & COMMISSION REVIEW 
Council Committee Review: Finance Committee 

Date:  Feb. 10, 2015 
Approvals:  Yes No 

Chair/Councilmember          
Councilmember      
Councilmember          

 Forward to:         Consent  
Agenda: 

 

 Yes     No 

Commission/Board Review:       
Hearing Examiner Review:       
 

COUNCIL ACTION 
Workshop Date(s):        Public Hearing Date(s):       
Meeting Date(s):        Tabled to Date:       
 

APPROVALS 
Director: 
      

Mayor: 
      

Date Reviewed  
by City Attorney:  
(if applicable): 

      

 
 

N:\Everyone\_AGENDA BILLS\2015 Agenda Bills\AB15-30 Annex Lease Termination Buyout Agr.docx 
 Version Oct. 2010 Agenda Packet p. 93 of 96



Agenda Packet p. 94 of 96Agenda Packet p. 94 of 96Agenda Packet p. 94 of 96Agenda Packet p. 94 of 96



Agenda Packet p. 95 of 96Agenda Packet p. 95 of 96



Agenda Packet p. 96 of 96Agenda Packet p. 96 of 96Agenda Packet p. 96 of 96Agenda Packet p. 96 of 96


	CITY COUNCIL MEETING
	AGENDA
	City of
	“Where Dreams Can Soar”


	A. Flag Salute
	B. Roll Call: Mayor Neil Johnson, Jr., Deputy Mayor Dan Swatman, Councilmember Mark Hamilton, Councilmember Donn Lewis, Councilmember Randy McKibbin, Councilmember Katrina Minton-Davis, Councilmember James Rackley, and Councilmember Tom Watson.
	C. Announcements, Appointments and Presentations:
	1. Announcements: None.
	2. Appointments: None.
	3. Presentations: None.
	D. Agenda Modifications
	2015-02-03_CouncilWkshpMinutes.pdf
	Blank Page

	2015-02-06_SpecialMtg-WWTFTour-Minutes.pdf
	Blank Page

	IV.F. AB15-19 Ord D15-19 FOG.pdf
	AB15-19 FOG Code Amendments - FINAL 2015-02-18
	D15-19 FOG Amendments Ordinance - FINAL 2015-02-18
	13.12.010 Definitions.
	13.12.320 FOG prevention requirements. Grease, oil and sand interceptors.
	Neil Johnson, Jr. 

	Blank Page

	IV.G. AB15-23 Res 2435 Community Garden.pdf
	AB15-23 Community Garden Agreement with BLCR
	Resolution 2435 - Community Garden
	Attorney Approved 2015 Community Garden Lease
	Blank Page

	V.A. AB15-26 Ord D15-26 School Impact Fees.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page




